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Forward-looking statements

The matters discussed in this Form 10-K that anedod-looking statements are based on current neanagt expectations that
involve substantial risks and uncertainties, whiohld cause actual results to differ materiallynfrthe results expressed in, or implied by,
these forward-looking statements. These statentant®e identified by the fact that they do notteekdrictly to historical or current facts.
They use words such as “aim,” “anticipate,” “bebgV‘could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,”plan,” “project,” “should,” “will be,”
“will continue,” “will likely result,” “would” and other words and terms of similar meaning irjuaction with a discussion of future operat
or financial performance. You should read statesiérdt contain these words carefully, because disguss our future expectations, contain

projections of our future results of operation®bour financial position or state other “forwambking” information.

We believe that it is important to communicate future expectations to our investors. However,dlege events in the future that
are not able to accurately predict or control. Tdwtors listed under Iltem 1A, Risk Factors, as welany cautionary language in this Form 10-
K, provide examples of risks, uncertainties andchévéhat may cause our actual results to differenmlty from the expectations we describe
in our forward-looking statements. Although we beé that our expectations are based on reasorshilenations, actual results may differ
materially from those in the forward looking statats as a result of various factors, including,rmittlimited to, those described under Iltem
1A, Risk Factors and elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the dathis Form 10<. Except as required under federal securities lameéthe rule
and regulations of the SEC, we do not have anyfite, and do not undertake, to update any forviaolting statements to reflect events or
circumstances arising after the date of this FobrK1whether as a result of new information, futavents or otherwise. As a result of these
risks and uncertainties, readers are cautionetbrgice undue reliance on the forward-lookingestents included in this Form 10-K or that
may be made elsewhere from time to time by or drali®f us. All forward-looking statements attribbte to us are expressly qualified by
these cautionary statements.




PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview

We are one of the largest distributors of residg@ind non-residential roofing materials in thetédiStates and Canada. We also
distribute other complementary building materiais|uding siding, windows, specialty lumber produiand waterproofing systems for
residential and nonresidential building exteridxs.of September 30, 2014, we operated 264 brarinhEs states and six Canadian provinces,
carrying up to 11,000 SKUs at each branch and sgmvearly 48,000 customers. We are a leading ldigtii of roofing materials in key
metropolitan markets in the Northeast, Mid-Atlanttidwest, Central Plains, West, South and Southwezgons of the United States and
across Canada.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014 éifigear 2014” or “2014”), residential roofing praxs comprised 48% of our sales,
non-residential roofing products accounted for 3#%ur sales, and siding, waterproofing systemagaivs, specialty lumber and other
exterior building products provided the remainird.of our sales. Approximately 92% of our net salese in the United States.

We also provide our customers a comprehensive afraglue-added services, including:

« Advice and assistance to contractors throughoutdhnstruction process, including product identtfima, specification and
technical suppor

« Job site delivery, rooftop loading and logisticahsces;

« Tapered insulation design and layout services;

« Metal fabrication and related metal roofing desagl layout services;
« Trade credit; and

« Marketing support, including project leads for caators.

We believe the additional services we provide gftieen our relationships with our customers andrdjsish us from our
competition. The vast majority of orders requiréeaist some of these services. Our ability to mevhese services efficiently and reliably
save contractors time and money. We also belieateatly value-added services enable us to achiénaete gross profit margins on our
product sales. We have earned a reputation faglalbivel of product availability and experienced @nofessional employees who provide
high-quality service, including timely, accuratedasafe delivery of products.

Our diverse customer base generally includes afisignt portion of the residential and non-residaintoofing contractors in most of
the markets in which we operate. These roofingreatdrs are typically involved on a local basishia replacement, or re-roofing, component
of the roofing industry. We utilize a branch-baspérating model in which branches maintain locatamner relationships but benefit from
our centralized functions such as information tetbgy, marketing, accounting, financial reportieggdit, purchasing, legal and tax services.
This business model allows us to provide customwéisspecialized products and personalized localises tailored to a geographic region,
while benefiting from the resources and scale iefficies of a national distributor.

We have achieved our growth through a combinatfid@b6astrategic and complementary acquisitions somweinitial public offering
in 2004, opening new branch locations and broadeoim product offering. In 2014, we acquired thoegnches and opened 26 new branches
We have grown from $652.9 million in sales in fisgaar 2004 to $2.326 billion in sales in fiscahy@014, which represents a ten-year
compound annual growth rate of 13.6%. Our integnalvth, which includes growth from existing anduheopened branches but excludes
growth from acquired branches, averaged 3.4% paurarover the same period. Acquired branches afdeded from internal growth
measures until they have been under our ownershigtfieast four full fiscal quarters at the stirthe reporting period. During this period,
we opened 67 new branch locations (of which we twakg closed three), while our same store salegased an average of 1.8% per annum.
Same store sales are defined as the aggregatdrsatelsranches open for the entire comparable drperaods. Income from operations has
increased from $34.7 million in fiscal year 2004588.9 million in fiscal year 2014, which represeatten-year compound annual growth rate
of 11.0%. We believe that our proven business meaielcontinue to deliver industry-leading growtll @perating profit margins.

Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reportd=orm 10-Q, current reports on FornK8and amendments to those reports f
or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(dhefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934 are availatele 6f charge on our website at
www.becn.com as soon as reasonably practical wBeglectronically file such reports with, or furimigiem to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission.




History

Our predecessor, Beacon Sales Company, Inc., wasléd in Charlestown, Massachusetts (part of Bd&oh028. In 1984, Beacon
operated three distribution facilities and genetatgproximately $16 million in annual revenue. 897, Beacon Sales Company had grow
seven branches in the New England region and getkeaaproximately $72 million of annual revenuémarily from the sale of non-
residential roofing products. Since 1997, we hawexated 32 strategic and complementary acquisitmasopened 77 new branches (of
which we only closed five). We have also expand&dpooduct offerings to offer more residential rioagf products and complementary
exterior building materials and related servicesr Srategic acquisitions, new branch openings,paoduct line extensions have increasel
diversity of both our customer base and our locakat focus, while generating cost savings thrangreased purchasing power and lower
overhead expenses as a percentage of net salerideted an initial public offering (“IPO”) and te&me a public company in
September 2004, and completed a follow-on stoodrioff) in December 2005.

We were incorporated in Delaware in 1997. Our ppalcexecutive offices are located at 505 Huntrrerk®rive, Suite 300,
Herndon, Virginia 20170 and our telephone numb¢bTd) 323-3939. Our Internet website address iswb&cn.com

Industry Overview

The United States roofing market was estimatecetodiued at approximately $20.2 billion in 2012 @grojected to grow 6.2%
annually through 2017 to $27.2 billion, accordingatbiannual industry study published in Septen2043 by international business research
company, The Freedonia Group. This will be a twnad from the 2007-2012 period, when roofing dem@dexlined as building construction
spending dropped during the 2007-2009 recessioritsuatermath. Going forward, rebounding buildzanstruction expenditures will drive
advances. The new residential market is expectede@dhe most rapid gains as housing starts ose their depressed 2012 base.

The United States roofing market can be separatedwo categories: the residential roofing magkad the non-residential roofing
market. The residential roofing market accountedafiproximately 58% of the total United States neaitky unit volume (48.4% of total
dollar demand) in 2012. Through 2017, residentiafing construction in dollars is expected to gatv8.0%, which is much faster than the
non+esidential roofing construction growth rate of%,3as new residential construction is projectedaiatinue to recover from the low levt
experienced from the 2007-2009 recession andtisrafth.

Traditionally, over 75% of expenditures in the ditStates roofing market are forrmsfing projects, with the balance being for r
construction. Because of the depressed level ofaestruction and damage caused by Hurricane Samdlpther storms, re-roofing activity
represented over 85% of the expenditures for rgafir012. Re-roofing projects are generally comstd maintenance and repair
expenditures and are less likely than new constnugtrojects to be postponed during periods ofgsiom or slow economic growth. As a
result, demand for roofing products is less vatdtilan overall demand for construction products.

Regional variations in economic activity influertbe level of demand for roofing products acrosshded States. Of particular
importance are regional differences in the levei@i home construction and renovation, since thieleatial market for roofing products
accounts for approximately 58% of unit demand. Dgraphic trends, including population growth and maipn, contribute to the regional
variations through their influence on regional Hogsstarts and existing home sales.

In addition to our operations with the United S¢at@e also operate in six provinces in Canada, lwimidotal represent
approximately 8% of our total revenues. We expeetall demand for operations in Canada to gromtat similar to our United States
operations.

Roofing distributors

Wholesale distribution is the dominant distributiwrannel for both residential and nonresidentiafing products. Wholesale roofi
product distributors serve the important role @ilftating the purchasing relationships betweerfirgpmaterials manufacturers and thouse
of contractors. Wholesale distributors can mainka@alized inventories, extend trade credit, givedpict advice and provide delivery and
logistics services.

Despite some recent consolidation, the roofing medsedistribution industry remains highly fragmedt The industry is
characterized by a large number of small and Iegibnal participants. As a result of their smalesmany of these distributors lack the
corporate, operating and IT infrastructure requitedompete effectively.




Residential roofing market

Within the residential roofing market, the re-rogfimarket is currently more than six times the sizhe new roofing market,
accounting for approximately 86% of the residentalfing unit demand in 2012 compared to a histlangy-term rate of about 75%.

Driving the demand for re-roofing is an aging Udittates housing stock. Over 61% of the UnitedeSthbusing stock was built
prior to 1980, with the median age of homes in 28127 years old. Asphalt shingles dominate thieleasial roofing market, with an
approximate 85% share, and historically have haelxpected average useful life of 15 to 20 yearsideatial roofing demand is forecast to
grow 4.5% per year to 163.5 million squares thro2@h7.

A number of other factors can also generate reirgafemand, including one-time weather damage anaelowners looking to
upgrade their homes. In addition, sales of existiagies can affect re-roofing demand, as some ré¢inovdecisions are made by sellers
preparing their houses for sale and others are tmadew owners within the first two years of occupa

Within the new construction portion of the residaihtoofing market, housing starts together wittyéxr average roof sizes have
supported prior growth in new residential roofirepthnd. Demand for roofing installed in new resi@ggmbnstruction and additions to
existing structures is forecast to grow over 15%uatly to 37.5 million squares in 2017. This wiél b turnaround from the 2007-2012 period
when roofing demand dropped at a double-digit ahpaee as housing starts declined precipitouslynduhe 2007-2009 recession. Going
forward, new residential roofing demand will bevein by the expected rebound in housing starts frain low 2012 level.

Non-residential roofing market

Non-residential roofing demand is forecast to adea?o per year to 104.5 million squares throughv2@hains will be driven by the
non-residential new construction, which is expedtesee 8% annual gains during that time. Growthbei spurred by the strong rebound in
office and commercial and institutional construstexpenditures and continuing increases in indalstanstruction spending.

In 2012, re-roofing projects represented approxatyaB4% of the total non-residential demand. Ashwasidential re-roofing, non-
residential recoofing activity tends to be less cyclical than neanstruction and depends, in part, upon the tgpesaterials on existing roo
their expected lifespan and intervening factordiagwind or water damage.

The nonresidential roofing market includes an office andhmercial market, an industrial market, and aritintgtnal market. Office
and commercial roofing projects is the single latg@mponent of the non-residential roofing magteéd1%. Industrial roofing projects
represent 21% of non-residential roofing produtsavhile institutional projects and others magethe remaining 28% of non-residential
roofing demand.

Complementary building products

Demand for complementary building products suckidisig, windows and doors for both the resideraia non-residential markets
has been at historically low levels in recent yeapsisistent with the downturns in the new consioaamarkets and in the overall economy.
Unlike the roofing industry, demand for these prdus more discretionary and influenced much grelay the new construction markets.

These complementary products are a major comparfi¢hé overall building products market. The Uniftdtes siding market was
approximately $8.2 billion in 2011, while the Urdt&tates window and door industry was approxim&kel.5 billion in 2012, the most rec
information available to us. Both of these marltetge been negatively impacted by the low leveleaf lousing starts in recent years, but
expected to grow at an annual rate of approxima#yover the next five years.

Our Strengths

We believe the sales and earnings growth we havievaad over time has been and will continue toitieed by our primary
competitive strengths, which include the following:

« National scope combined with regional expertise. We believe we are the second largest roofing nasedistributor in the
United States and Canada. We utilize a branch-baseiciting model in which branches maintain locstemer relationships
but benefit from centralized functions such asiimfation technology, marketing, accounting, finahmgorting, credit,
purchasing, legal and tax services. This allowsysovide customers with specialized products perdonalized local
services tailored to a geographic region, whiledfiéing from the resources and scale efficiencies oational distributor




» Diversified business model that reduces impact of economic downturns. We believe that our business is meaningfully
protected in an economic downturn because of a togleentration of non-discretionary re-roofing Imesis; the mix of our
sales between residential and rresidential products; our geographic and custonversity; and our financial and operatio
ability to expand our business and obtain markates

o Superior customer service. We believe that our high level of customer senand support differentiates us from our
competitors. We employ experienced salespeoplepatnde technical advice and assistance in propdestifying products
for various applications. We also provide servisgsh as safe and timely job site delivery, logétgupport and marketing
assistance. We believe that the services proviglemibemployees improve our customers’ efficienog profitability which,
in turn, strengthens our customer relationst

« Strong platform for growth and acquisition.  Over the period from 1997 through 2014, we incrdasgenue at rates well in
excess of the overall growth in the roofing matsrdistribution industry. We have expanded our hess through strategic
acquisitions, new branch openings, and the divieatibn of our product offering. We have generaihproved the financial
and operating performance of our acquired compamidshelped them to grow their businesses follovaicquisition.

» Sophisticated I T platform.  All of our locations, except for one fabricatiortilety, operate on the same management
information systems. We have made a significangéstiment in our information systems, which we beiave among the most
advanced in the roofing distribution industry. Theystems provide us with a consistent platforrosall of our operations
and help us to achieve operating efficiencies irtipasing, pricing and inventory management andh keivel of customer
service. Our systems have substantial capacitanolle our future growth plans without requiringrsfgant additional
investment

« Industry-leading management team. We believe that our key personnel, including bramamagers, regional vice preside
and executive officers, are among the most expeg@members of the roofing indust

« Extensive product offering and strong supplier relationships.  We have a product offering of approximately 11,830Js
across our distribution network, representing aemsive assortment of high-quality branded prodists believe that this
product offering has been a significant factortina@ting and retaining many of our customers. Bseaof our significant
scale, product expertise and reputation in the etarthat we serve, we have established strongotid®e major roofing
materials manufacturers and are able to achievetauitial volume discount

Growth Strategies

Our objective is to become the preferred supplieoofing and other exterior building product méiés in the United States and
Canadian markets while continuing to increase evemue base and maximize our profitability. We péaattain these goals by executing the
following strategies:

» Pursue acquisitions of regional market-leading roofing materials distributors. ~ Acquisitions are an important componer
our growth strategy. We believe there are signifiagpportunities to further grow our business tigtodisciplined, strategic
acquisitions. With only a few large, well-capit@izcompetitors in the industry, we believe we camtioue to build on our
distribution platform by successfully acquiring &ttthal roofing materials distributors. Between 20éhd 2014, we
successfully integrated 26 strategic and compleangmtcquisitions

« Expandthrough new branch openings.  Significant opportunities exist to expand mtensify our geographic focus by
opening additional branches in contiguous or existegions. Since 1997, we have successfully eshtamenerous markets
through greenfield expansion. Our typical stratedfi respect to greenfield opportunities is to opeanches: (1) within our
existing markets; (2) where existing customers reymnded into new markets; or (3) in areas tha lienited or no
acquisition candidates and are a good fit withtmginess model. At times, we have acquired smstitidutors with one to
three branches to fill in existing regiol

« Expand product and service offerings.  We believe that continuing to increase theabtle of our product line and customer
services are effective methods of increasing galesrrent customers and attracting new custonvéeswork closely with
customers and suppliers to identify new buildingdurcts and services, including varieties of windosiding, waterproofing
systems, insulation and metal fabrication. In addjtwe believe we can expand our business bydotrimg products current
only sold in certain of our markets into some of other markets. We also believe we can expandcpéat product sales that
are stronger in certain of our markets into markétsre those products have not sold as well (expanding nonresidential
roofing sales into markets that sell mostly resi@moofing).




Products and Services
Products

The ability to provide a broad range of productegsential in roofing materials distribution. Wergane of the most extensive
arrays of highguality branded products in the industry, enablisgo deliver a wide variety of products to ourtousers on a timely basis. V
are able to fulfill the vast majority of our warels® orders through the breadth and depth of theniovies at our branches. Our product
portfolio includes residential and non-residentadfing products as well as complementary buildgingducts such as siding, windows and
specialty lumber products. Our product lines agieed to meet the requirements of both resideatidlnon-residential roofing contractors.

Product Portfolio
Non-Residential

Residential Complementary

Roofing Products

Roofing Products

Building Products

Asphalt shingles
Synthetic slate and tile
Clay tile

Concrete tile

Slate

Nail base insulatio

Metal roofing

Felt

Wood shingles and shak
Nails and fastenel

Metal edgings and flashings

Prefabricated flashing
Ridges and soffit ven
Gutters and downspou
Other accessorie

Single-ply roofing
Asphalt
Metal
Modified bitumen
Build-up roofing
Cements and coatini
Insulation — flat stock &
taperec
Commercial fastenel
Metal edges and flashings
Sky lights, smoke rad
hatches
Sheet metal (copper, alumin
and steel
Other accessorie

Siding Windows/Doors
Vinyl siding Vinyl windows
Cedar sidin¢ Aluminum windows

Fiber cement sidin
Soffits

House wrap:
Vapor barriers
Stone venee

Other

Wood windows
Wood doors
Patio doors
Skylights

Specialty Lumber

Water proofing
Building insulation
Air barrier system:
Gypsum

Moldings

Patio cover:
Cultured stont

Redwooc

Red cedar deckin
Pressure treated lumk
Fire treated plywoo
Synthetic deckiny
PVC trim boards
Synthetic

Millwork
Custom millwork

The products that we distribute are supplied byiridestry’s leading manufacturers of high-qualitpfing materials and related
products, such as Alcoa, Atlas, BPCO, Carlislet&eTeed, Continental Materials, Dow, Firestone FKMaterials, IKO, James Hardie,
Johns Manwville, Mid-States Asphalt, Owens Cornfsignonton, Tamko and Revere Copper.

In the residential market, asphalt shingles coretig largest share of the products we sell. Wiesethat we have also develope
service platform in the residential roofing markgtdistributing products such as highd shingles, copper gutters and metal roofingumrts,
as well as specialty lumber products for residéafilications, including redwood, white and redareshingles, and red cedar siding.
Additionally, we distribute gutters, downspoutoI& nails, vinyl siding, windows, decking and tethexterior shelter products to meet the
expansive needs of our customers.

In the non-residential market, single-ply roofingtems and the associated insulation products dsenre largest share of our
product offering. Our single-ply roofing systemsisist primarily of Ethylene Propylene Diene Monort@mthetic rubber) or “EPDM” and
Thermoplastic Olefin or “TPQO”, along with other fow materials and related components. In additiothe broad range of singidy roofing
components, we sell asphaltic membranes and thtatien required in most non-residential roofingkgations, such as tapered insulation.
Our remaining non-residential products include inetafing and flashings, fasteners, fabrics, cagijrroof drains, modified bitumen, builp
roofing and asphalt.




Services

We emphasize superior value-added services toustomers. We employ a knowledgeable staff of sal@sje. Our sales personnel
possess in-depth knowledge of roofing materialsapmlications and are capable of providing tecHradaice and assistance to contractors
throughout the re-roofing and construction procesgparticular, we support our customers with thiéofving value-added services:

» Advice and assistance on product identificatioecs#ffration and technical support;
« timely job site delivery, rooftop loading and lotgsl services;
» tapered insulation design and related layout sesyic
« metal fabrication and related metal roofing desigd layout services;
« trade credit; and
« marketing support, including project leads for caators.
Customers

Our diverse customer base consists of nearly 4&,66@actors, home builders, building owners, atiéoresellers primarily in the
Northeast, Mi-Atlantic, Midwest, Central Plains, West, South &alithwest regions of the United States and a€assada. Our typical
customer base varies by end market, with relatisetgll contractors in the residential market andlbto large-sized contractors in the non-
residential market. To a lesser extent, our custdrase in a market can include general contraatetailers and building materials suppliers.

As evidenced by the fact that a significant nundfesur customers have relied on us or our predecgess their vendor of choice for
decades, we believe that we have strong custoragioreships that our competitors cannot easily ldisp or replicate. No single customer
accounts for more than 2% of our revenues.

Sales and Marketing
Sales strategy

Our sales strategy is to provide a comprehensiay af high-quality products and superior value-edidervices to residential and
non-residential roofing contractors reliably, a@tely and on time. We fulfill approximately 97%air warehouse orders through our in-
stock inventory as a result of the breadth andhdepour inventory maintained at our local branchw'e believe that our focus on providing
both superior value-added services and accurateagid order fulfilment enables us to attract aetin customers.

Sales organization

We have attracted and retained an experiencedfeatesof approximately 1,250 personnel who argeesible for generating
revenue at the local branch level. The expertiseuoisalespeople helps us to increase sales tiingxeistomers and add new customers.

Each of our branches is headed by a branch manaleralso functions as the branch’s sales man&gaddition, each branch
generally employs one to four outside salespeamdeome to five inside salespeople who report to ttranch manager. Branches that focus
primarily on the residential market typically staffarger number of outside salespeople.

The primary responsibilities of our outside salege are to prospect for new customers and increass to existing customers.
One of the ways our outside salespeople accomipieste objectives is by reviewing information froor proprietary LogicTrack software
system, which extracts job and bid information froomstruction reports and other industry news sesriThe system extracts information on
construction projects in our local markets fromsindustry services. Once a construction progeittdntified, our design and estimating
team creates job quotes, which, along with pertibehand job information, are readily availableowrr salespeople through LogicTrack. Our
outside salespeople then contact potential cussmem effort to solicit their interest in parpating with us in the identified
project. Throughout this process, LogicTrack mangta record of quoting activity, due dates, artptiata to allow tracking of the projects
and efficient follow-up. By seeking a contractor'partner with” on a bid, we increase the likelildbihat such contractor will purchase their
roofing materials and related products from uhmeavent that the contractor is selected for tgpt.




To complement our outside sales force, we have daiexperienced and technically proficient insdkes staff that provides vital
product expertise to our customers. Our insidesdalee is responsible for fielding incoming ordgmviding pricing quotations and
responding to customer inquiries.

In addition to our outside and inside sales foreesrepresent certain manufacturers for partiomanufacturersproducts. Currentl
we have developed relationships with Carlisle amg@s Corning on this basis and employ represeetatikho act as liaisons (on behalf of
property owners, architects, specifiers and coastd) between these roofing materials manufactaredgprofessional contractors.

Marketing

In order to capitalize on established custometimiahips and locally developed brands, we havetamied the trade names of m
of the businesses that we have acquired. These na@tes—such Alabama Roofing Supply, Beacon Ro&imply Canada Company,
Beacon Sales Company, Best Distributing Compangsé&dy Pierce, Coastal Metal Service, Constructiatehhls Supply, Dealers Choice,
Enercon Products, Entrepot de la Toiture, Ford \W$ele Company, Groupe Bédard, JGA Beacon, Lafavétied Works, McClure Johnstc
Mississippi Roofing Supply, North Coast Roofing &yss, Pacific Supply, Posi-Slope, Posi-Pentes, iQuabofing Supply, Roof Depot,
Shelter Distribution, Southern Roof Center, Strraitivaterials, The Roof Center, West End Roofingjryy & Windows — are well-known
in the local markets in which the respective brasctompete and are associated with high-qualitgywts and customer service.

As a supplement to the efforts of our sales foeeeh of our branches communicates with residesidinon-residential contractors
in their local markets through newsletters, diraeil, social media and the Internet. In order tddoand strengthen relationships with
customers and vendors, we offer exclusive prometard sponsor our own regional trade shows, wigiatufe general business and roofing
seminars for our customers and product demonstisatiyg our vendors. In addition, we attend numeinodsstry trade shows throughout the
regions in which we compete, and we are an actember of the National Roofing Contractors Assooigtas well as certain regional
contractors’ associations.

Purchasing and Suppliers

Our status as a leader in our core geographic rsr&e well as our reputation in the industry, ddémved us to forge strong
relationships with numerous manufacturers of rapfimaterials and related products, including Algsizas, BPCO, Carlisle, CertainTeed,
Continental Materials, Dow, Firestone, GAF MatesjdKO, James Hardie, Johns Manville, Mid-Statephfsdt, Owens Corning, Simonton,
Tamko and Revere Copper.

We are viewed by our suppliers as a key distribdtar to our industry expertise, past growth anditatility, significant market
share, financial strength, and the substantialmelof products that we distribute.

We manage the procurement of products through atimmal headquarters and regional offices, allowiado take advantage of bc
our scale and local market conditions. We beliéng énables us to purchase products more econdyrilcah most of our competitors.
Product is shipped directly by the manufacturersuobranches or customers.

Operations
Facilities

Our network of 264 branches as of September 304 286dves metropolitan areas in 42 states and siadian provinces. This
network has enabled us to effectively and effidiesérve a broad customer base and to achievaedmtemarket position in each of our core
geographic markets.

Operations

Our branch-based model provides each location avitignificant amount of autonomy to operate withie& parameters of our overall
business model. Operations at each branch areetdito meet local customer needs. Depending om#rket, branches carry from about
2,000 to 11,000 SKUs.

Branch managers are responsible for sales, pramigstaffing activities, and have full operatiocaihtrol of customer service and
deliveries. We provide our branch managers withifimant incentives that allow them to share in phefitability of their respective branches
as well as in the company as a whole. Personmelraiegional and corporate operations assist thedhes with, among other things, product
procurement, credit and safety services, fleet mament, information systems support, contract mamagt, accounting, treasury and legal
services, human resources, benefits administratiohsales and use tax services.




Distribution fulfillment process

Our distribution fulfillment process is initiateghon receiving a request for a contract job ordeti@ct product order from a
contractor. Under a contract job order, a contratgtaically requests roofing or other constructmoaterials and technical support services.
The contractor discusses the project’s requiremaitksa salesperson and the salesperson proviggseaquotation for the package of
products and services. Subsequently, the salesppreoesses the order and we deliver the prododtetcustomer’s job site.

Fleet

Our distribution infrastructure supports nearly 800 deliveries annually. To accomplish this, wenteaned a dedicated owned fl
of 863 straight trucks, 312 tractors and 641 traibes of September 30, 2014. Nearly all of ournvéei vehicles are equipped with specialized
equipment, including 1,026 truakeounted forklifts, cranes, hydraulic booms and @ywrs, which are necessary to deliver productsaftap
job sites in an efficient and safe manner and goatance with our customs requirements.

Our branches typically focus on providing matertalsustomers who are located within a two-houiusdf their respective
facilities. Our branches generally make delivegash business day.

Management information systems

We have fully integrated management informatioriesys across our locations. Acquired businessesiaved to our IT platform as
soon as feasible following acquisition. Our systesmgport every major internal operational functiexcept payroll, providing complete
integration of purchasing, receiving, order progegsshipping, inventory management, sales anafyrsisaccounting. The same databases are
shared within the systems, allowing our branchesagily acquire products from other branches oeduale deliveries by other branches,
greatly enhancing our customer service. Our systdatsinclude a sophisticated pricing matrix whadlows us to refine pricing by region,
branch, customer and customer type, or even afgpegstomer project. In addition, our systems\allgs to centrally monitor all branch and
regional performance as often as daily. We havéraéred many functions to leverage our growingsincluding accounts payable,
insurance, payroll, employee benefits, vendor imtat and banking.

All of our branches are connected to our IBM AS48tnputer network via secure Internet connectionwivate data lines. We
maintain redundant systems with transactional daténg replicated throughout each business dayh#@ve the capability of electronically
switching our operations to the disaster recovgsgesn.

We have financial reporting packages for brancinelsragions that allow them to compare branch bypdirdinancial performance,
which we believe is essential to operating eachdirafficiently and more profitably. We also utdia monthly benchmarking report that
enables comparison of all of our branches’ andoregjiperformance in critical areas.

We place purchase orders electronically with sofreuomajor vendors. The vendors then transmitr tineoices electronically to u
Our system automatically matches these invoices thi¢ related purchase orders and then sched@es#ociated payment. We also have
capability to handle customer processing electailyicalthough most customers prefer ordering vleeomethods.

We completed a “paperless copy” process in 2012eltyewe scan or receive many financial, credit attér documents into a
database for purposes of internal approvals, onieing and auditing. Additionally, we establishea Internet portal that allows customers
to access their invoice history and make onlinenpents.

Government Regulations
We are subject to regulation by various federakestprovincial and local agencies. These ageinidsde the Environmental
Protection Agency, Department of Transportatiotgrstate Commerce Commission, Occupational SafetyHealth Administration and

Department of Labor and Equal Employment Opporju@ismmission. We believe we are in compliance limaterial respects with existing
applicable statutes and regulations affecting emwirental issues and our employment, workplace heald workplace safety practices.
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In 2012, the United States Supreme Court upheldniijerity of the provisions in the Patient Protentand Affordable Care Act (the
“Act”). The Act places requirements on employergtovide a minimum level of benefits to employerd assesses penalties on employers if
the benefits do not meet the required minimum levef the cost of coverage to employees exceedsdatbility thresholds specified in the
Act. The minimum benefits and affordability requirents took effect in 2014. The Act also imposesyaise tax beginning in 2018 on plans
whose average cost exceeds specified amounts. Weamalyzed the effects on us from the provisidith® Act and we do not currently
anticipate a significant financial impact.

Competition

Although we are one of the two largest roofing mate distributors in the United States and Can#ualUnited States roofing sup
industry is highly competitive. The vast majoritiyaur competition comes from local and regionalfiteg supply distributors, and, to a much
lesser extent, other building supply distributand &big box” retailers. Among distributors, we coetp against a small number of large
distributors and many small and local privately-edmlistributors. The principal competitive factorour business include, but are not
limited to, the availability of materials and suiggt technical product knowledge and expertiseisady or other service capabilities; pricing
of products; and availability of credit and capitde generally compete on the basis of the quafigur services, product quality and, to a
lesser extent, price.

Employees

As of September 30, 2014, we had 3,179 employeesijsting of 821 in sales and marketing, 419 imblnamanagement, including
supervisors, 1,481 warehouse workers, helpers avers, and 438 general and administrative perdompproximately 20 employees were
added in 2014 from our acquisitions. We believé tha employee relations are good. As of SepterBibeR014, 35 employees were
represented by labor unions.
Order Backlog

Order backlog is not a material aspect of our legsrand no material portion of our business isestiltp government contracts.
Seasonality

In general, sales and net income are highest dorindjrst, third and fourth fiscal quarters, whigpresent the peak months of
construction and re-roofing, especially in our lotaes in the northern and mid-western regions ofMhiged States and in Canada. Our sales
are substantially lower during the second quavteen we usually incur net losses. These quartkréifations have diminished as we have
diversified further into the southern and westagions of the United States.
Geographic Data

For geographic data about our business, pleasdaeel4 to our Consolidated Financial Statemerdisided elsewhere in this
Form 10-K.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks and undatis described below and other information in&@ddn this Form 10-K in
evaluating us and our business. If any of the evdascribed below occur, our business and finarreigiilts could be adversely affected in a
material way. This could cause the trading pric@oaf common stock to decline, perhaps significantly

We may not be able to effectively integrate newly acquired businessesinto our operations or achieve expected profitability from our
acquisitions.

Our growth strategy includes acquiring other disttors of roofing materials and complementary potsluAcquisitions involve
numerous risks, including:

- unforeseen difficulties in integrating operatiotesshnologies, services, accounting and personnel;

« diversion of financial and management resources &aisting operations;

- unforeseen difficulties related to entering geograpegions where we do not have prior experience;
» potential loss of key employees;

» unforeseen liabilities associated with businessgsieed; and

« inability to generate sufficient revenue to offaetuisition or investment costs.

As a result, if we fail to evaluate and executeudsitions properly, we might not achieve the aptted benefits of such acquisitions
and we may incur costs in excess of what we autieipr hese risks would likely be greater in theeaafdarger acquisitions.

We may not be able to successfully identify acquisition candidates, which would slow our growth rate.

We continually seek additional acquisition candédan selected markets and from time to time engaggploratory discussions
with potential candidates. If we are not successfiihding attractive acquisition candidates wha can acquire on satisfactory terms, or if
we cannot complete acquisitions that we identifig unlikely that we will sustain the historicalogvth rates of our business.

An inability to obtain the products that we distribute could result in lost revenues and reduced margins and damage relationships with
customers.

We distribute roofing and other exterior buildingterials that are manufactured by a number of majppliers. Although we
believe that our relationships with our supplienes strong and that we would have access to sipitadtucts from competing suppliers should
products be unavailable from current sources, @y ption in our sources of supply, particularlytié most commonly sold items, could
result in a loss of revenues and reduced margidslamage relationships with customers. Supply ageg may occur as a result of
unanticipated demand or production or deliveryidiifties. When shortages occur, roofing materigipiers often allocate products among
distributors.

Loss of key personnel or our inability to attract and retain new qualified personnel could hurt our ability to operate and grow successfully.

Our success will continue to depend to a signifiextent on our executive officers and key managemersonnel, including our
divisional executive vice presidents and regiorieg ypresidents. We do not have key man life instgarovering any of our executive office
We may not be able to retain our executive offi@ard key personnel or attract additional qualifie@hagement. The loss of any of our
executive officers or other key management perdpooneur inability to recruit and retain qualifigetrsonnel, could hurt our ability operat:
and make it difficult to execute our acquisitiordanternal growth strategies.

A changein vendor pricing could adversely affect our income and gross margins.
Many of the products that we distribute are suljeqtrice changes based upon manufacturers’ rawriabtosts and other
manufacturer pricing decisions. Although we oftem @ble to pass on manufacturers’ price increasgsability to pass on increases in costs

depends on market conditions. The inability to @desg cost increases could result in lower opegatiargins. In addition, higher prices
could impact demand for these products, resultingwer sales volumes.

12




A changein vendor rebates could adversely affect our income and gross margins.

The terms on which we purchase product from marguofvendors entitle us to receive a rebate baseteovolume of our
purchases. These rebates effectively reduce ots farsproducts. If market conditions change, veadoay adversely change the terms of
some or all of these programs. Although these csmguld not affect the net recorded costs of prbdiready purchased, it may lower our
gross margins on products we sell and thereforindwnme we realize on such sales in future periods.

Cyclicality in our business could result in lower revenues and reduced profitability.

We sell a portion of our products for new residardind non-residential construction. The strendtth@se markets depends on new
housing starts and business investment, which airection of many factors beyond our control, irthg credit and capital availability,
interest rates, employment levels and consumeiidemde. Economic downturns in the regions and ntanke serve could result in lower
revenues and, since many of our expenses are fowdr profitability. The challenging economic cdtiwhs in recent years, including tighter
credit markets, influenced new residential and cenuial projects and, to a lesser extent, re-rogfirgjects, and may continue to negatively
affect expenditures for roofing in the near term.

Seasonality in the construction and re-roofing industry generally resultsin second quarter losses.

Our second quarter is typically affected adversglyvinter construction cycles and cold weathergrat as the levels of activity in
the new construction and re-roofing markets deere@scause many of our expenses remain relativedg throughout the year, we generally
record a loss during our second quarter. We expatthese seasonal variations will continue inrtbar future.

If we encounter difficultieswith our management information systems, we could experience problemswith inventory, collections, customer
service, cost control and business plan execution.

We believe our management information systems amrgpetitive advantage in maintaining our leadgrgiuisition in the roofing
distribution industry. However, if we experiencelplems with our management information systemsgougd experience, among other
things, product shortages and/or an increase iouads receivable aging. Any failure by us to properaintain and protect our management
information systems could adversely impact ourighib attract and serve customers and could casige incur higher operating costs and
experience delays in the execution of our busipkss

Since we rely heavily on information technologytbat serving our customers and in our enterprif@astructure in order to achieve
our objectives, we may be vulnerable to damagatausion from a variety of cyber-attacks includc@mputer viruses, worms or other
malicious software programs that access our systBaspite the precautions we take to mitigate iglesrof such events, an attack on our
enterprise information technology system could ltéattheft or disclosure of our proprietary or €iolential information or a breach of
confidential customer or employee information. Saehnts could have an adverse impact on revenu®, tiar reputation, and cause us to
incur legal liability and costs, which could bersficant, to address and remediate such eventsedagkd security concerns.

An impairment of goodwill and/or other intangible assets could reduce net income.

Acquisitions frequently result in the recordinggafodwill and other intangible assets. At Septen®@r2014, goodwill represented
approximately 33% of our total assets. Goodwilidas amortized for financial reporting purposes anslubject to impairment testing at least
annually using a fair-value based approach. Thetifiigation and measurement of goodwill impairmantolves the estimation of the fair
value of our reporting units. Our accounting fopairment contains uncertainty because managemesttusa judgment in determining
appropriate assumptions to be used in the measuaterhfair value. We determine the fair values of ceporting units by using both a mar
and income approach.

We evaluate the recoverability of goodwill for inmpaent in between our annual tests when eventhanges in circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount of goodwill mat he recoverable. Any impairment of goodwill wilduce net income in the period in
which the impairment is recognized.
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We might need to raise additional capital, which may not be available, thuslimiting our growth prospects.

We may require additional future equity or furtidebt financing in order to consummate an acquisitior additional working
capital for expansion; or if we suffer more thaasmally expected losses. In the event such addltexuity or debt financing is unavailable
to us, we may be unable to expand or make acaprisitind our stock price may decline as a resulteoperception that we have more limited
growth prospects.

Major disruptionsin the capital and credit markets may impact both the availability of credit and business conditions.

If the financial institutions that have extendeddit commitments to us are adversely affected bypnthsruptions in the capital and
credit markets, they may become unable to fundowings under those credit commitments. This coaldehan adverse impact on our
financial condition since we need to borrow funtisraes for working capital, acquisitions, capiaipenditures and other corporate purposes.

Major disruptions in the capital and credit marlaisld also lead to broader economic downturnsciwbould result in lower
demand for our products and increased incidenceisibmers’ inability to pay their accounts. Addiiéd customer bankruptcies or similar
events caused by such broader downturns may iasuhigher level of bad debt expense than we hasterically experienced. Also, our
suppliers may potentially be impacted, causing mekdisruptions or delays of product availabilifyhese events would adversely impact our
results of operations, cash flows and financialtpms

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of November 1, 2014, we lease 265 facilities|uding our headquarters and other support fagsljtthroughout the United States
and Canada. These leased facilities range in ope dpproximately 2,000 square feet to 137,000 rerieeet. In addition, we own 14
sales/warehouse facilities located in Manchestery Mampshire; Reading, Pennsylvania; Montreal, @ua€B); Sainte-Foy, Quebec; Delson,
Quebec; Trois Rivieres, Quebec; Salisbury, Marylafattford, Connecticut; Cranston, Rhode Islandhdasster, Pennsylvania; Jacksonville,
Florida; Easton, Maryland; and Manassas, Virgifiteese owned facilities range in size from 11,500as¢ feet to 68,000 square feet. All of
the owned properties are mortgaged to our senioieles. We believe that our properties are in gquetating condition and adequately serve
our current business operations.
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As of November 1, 2014, we operated 270 branchfesy avith multiple leased facilities or combinectifdgies, and nine other
facilities were located in the following states ardvinces:

Number of
State Branches Other
Alabama
Arizona
Arkansas
California
Colorado
Connecticu
Delaware
Florida
Georgia
Illinois
Indiana
lowa
Kansas
Kentucky
Louisiana
Maine
Maryland
Massachuseti
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
Missouri
Montana
Nebraske
New Hampshire
New Jerse!
New Mexico
New York
North Caroline
Ohio
Oklahoma
Pennsylvani:
Rhode Islanc
South Carolin:
South Dakot:
Tennesse
Texas
Utah
Vermont
Virginia
West Virginia
Wyoming
Subtotal— United States
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Canadian Provinces
Alberta
Saskatchewa
British Columbia
Ontario

Quebec

Nova Scotic

Subtotal—Canada 2

N

NI, OO0 W
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are involved in lawsuits theg brought against us in the normal course ahkss. We are not currently a
party to any legal proceedings that would be exgabatither individually or in the aggregate, to énavmaterial adverse effect on our business

or financial condition.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Séleatket (the “NASDAQ”) under the symbol “BECN”. THellowing table
lists quarterly information on the price range af oommon stock based on the high and low repaddsiprices for our common stock as
reported by NASDAQ for the periods indicated below:

High Low

Year ended September 30, 201:

First quartel $ 3341 $ 27.7(C

Second quarte $ 39.6¢ $ 33.2¢

Third quartel $ 42.0C $ 35.2%

Fourth quarte $ 42.2¢ $ 34.82
Year ended September 30, 2014:

First quarte| $ 40.7C $ 34.0¢

Second quarte $ 40.91 $ 35.5(

Third quartel $ 38.9¢ $ 33.0C

Fourth quarte $ 33.7C $ 24.9¢

There were 52 registered holders of record of oumroon stock as of November 1, 2014.
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers

No purchases of our equity securities were madeshyr any affiliated entity during the fourth quearof the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2014.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

None.
Dividends

We have not paid cash dividends on our common stadkdo not anticipate paying dividends in the $eeable future. Our board of
directors currently intends to retain any futuren@ggs for reinvestment in our growing businessr f@wolving credit facilities currently
prohibit the payment of dividends without the praiitten consent of our lenders. Any future deteration to pay dividends will also be at
discretion of our board of directors and will bgodedent upon our results of operations and cassflour financial position and capital

requirements, general business conditions, legal regulatory and any contractual restrictionshenpayment of dividends, and any other
factors our board of directors deems relevant.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative totereholder return (including reinvestment of divids) of Beacon Roofing
Supply, Inc.’s common stock based on its marketgsri beginning with the start of fiscal year 20t each fiscal year thereafter, with (i) the
Nasdaq Index and (ii) the S&P 1500 Building Produntex.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return

5230

£200

150

£100

350

g0 . . T T 1
8/30/09 8130110 813011 @302 #3013 3014

—— Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. —&— Masdaq Index --—&--- 5&P 1500 Building Products Index

The line graph assumes that $100 was investedrinarumon stock, the Nasdaq Index and the S&P 150[@iBg Products Index ¢
September 30, 2009. The closing price of our comatook on September 30, 2014 was $25.48. The gwok performance of Beacon
Roofing Supply, Inc.’s common stock depicted in gin@ph above represents past performance onlysamat inecessarily indicative of future
performance.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

You should read the following selected financidbimation together with our financial statementd aglated notes and
“Management’s discussion and analysis of finangialdition and results of operations” also includethis Form 10-K. We have derived the
statement of operations data for the years endpte®b&er 30, 2014, September 30, 2013 and Septe86b2012, and the balance sheet
information at September 30, 2014 and Septembe2(IB, from our audited financial statements inetlich this Form 10-K. We have
derived the statements of operations data for éaesyended September 30, 2011 and September 3D, &l the balance sheet data at
September 30, 2012, September 30, 2011 and Sept&Mmb2010, from our audited financial statemermtsincluded in this Form 10-K.

Statement of operations data

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands, except per share amount:

Net sales $ 2,326,900 $ 2,240,72. $ 2,04365 $ 1,817,420 $  1,609,96

Cost of products sold 1,799,06! 1,709,32 1,542,25. 1,397,79: 1,249,86!
Gross profit 527,84( 531,39 501,40 419,62! 360,10(

Operating expenses 428,97 401,67¢ 357,73. 315,88: 286,58:
Income from operation 98,86 129,72: 143,67 103,74. 73,517

Interest expense, financing costs and o (10,09%) (8,247 (17,177 (13,369 (18,210

Income taxes (34,92)) (48,86) (50,939 (31,159 (20,78))
Net income $ 53,84¢ $ 72,607 $ 75,56 $ 59,22( $ 34,52¢
Net income per shar

Basic $ 1.0¢ $ 15C $ 16z $ 12¢ $ 0.7¢€

Diluted $ 1.0 $ 147 $ 158 $ 127 % 0.7t
Weighted average shares outstand

Basic 49,227,46 48,472,24 46,718,94 45,919,19 45,480,92

Diluted 49,947,69 49,385,33 47,840,96 46,753,15 46,031,59
Other financial and operating da

Depreciation and amortizatic $ 30,29 $ 30,41 $ 24,35: $ 25,06( $ 27,77%

Capital expenditures (excluding acquisitio  $ 37,23¢ $ 26,12( $ 17,40¢ $ 1443 $ 10,26¢
Number of branches at end of per 264 23€ 20¢ 18t 17¢
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Balance sheet data

Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

Borrowings under revolving lines of credit,
current portions of long-term debt and other
obligations

Long-term debt, net of current portior
Senior notes payable and other obligati
Other long-term obligations

Stockholders’ equity

September 30
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands)
$ 54,47 $ 47,020 $ 40,208 $ 143,020 $ 117,13t
$ 143389 $ 133869 $ 1,216,98 $ 1,156,996 $  1,042,18
$ 35,11¢ $ 62,52« $ 56,93 $ 15,60 $ 15,73¢
$ 185,62! $ 196,87 $ 208,12 $ 301,54 $ 311,77:
30,83t 12,72¢ 12,75( 9,967 11,91(
$ 216,46( $ 209,60. $ 220,87 $ 31151, $ 323,68:
$ 817,10. $ 754,35¢ $ 651,96: $ 538,42 $ 468,84«
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjiomctvith our consolidated financial statements aeldted notes and other
financial information appearing elsewhere in thisrfa 1(-K. In addition to historical information, the follving discussion and other parts of
this Form 10-K contain forwardboking information that involves risks and uncérmtees. Our actual results could differ materiaflypm those
anticipated by this forward-looking information dtgethe factors discussed under “Risk factors,” ‘f@rd-looking statements” and
elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Certain tabular inf@tion will not foot due to rounding.

Overview

We are one of the largest distributors of resiggmtnd non-residential roofing materials in thetgdiStates and Canada. We are also
a distributor of other building materials, inclugisiding, windows, specialty lumber products anden@oofing systems for residential and
nonresidential building exteriors. We purchase potslfrom a large number of manufacturers and tligmibute these goods to a customer
base consisting of contractors and, to a lessengxgeneral contractors, retailers and buildingenia suppliers.

Depending on the market, our branches carry frooued,000 to 11,000 SKUs, totaling more than 200 88Us throughout our
network of 264 branches across the United Statg@<amada. For the fiscal year ended September03d, Cfiscal year 2014” or “2014"),
approximately 92% of our net sales were in the éthiBtates. We stock one of the most extensivetassots of highguality branded produc
in the industry, enabling us to deliver productetm customers on a timely basis.

Execution of the operating plan at each of our tinas drives our financial results. Revenues ar@dategl by the relative strength of
the residential and non-residential roofing marketsserve. We strive for an appropriate mix ofdestial, non-residential and
complementary product sales in all of our regiomsalow each of our branches to influence its amarketing plan and mix of products
based upon its local market. We differentiate duesefrom the competition by providing many custorservices such as job site delivery,
tapered insulation layouts and design and metaicatiion, and by providing credit. We consider omsér relations and our employees’
knowledge of roofing and exterior building matesitd be important to our ability to increase custoioyalty and maintain customer
satisfaction. We invest significant resources @ning our employees in sales techniques, manageskitls and product knowledge. While
we consider these attributes important driversuwftiusiness, we also continually pay close attartbocontrolling operating costs.

Our growth strategy includes both internal growdpening branches, growing sales with existing custs, adding new customers
and introducing new products) and acquisition ghov@ur main acquisition strategy is to target makkaders in geographic areas that we do
not service or that complement our existing operatin an area. The following transactions higtiliglr recent success delivering on our
growth strategy:

« We have continued to focus on organic greenfietavgn with the opening of 26 new branches in 20D4néw branches in
2013 and four new branches in 2012. These 40 nanchrlocations in the past three years have allawsdd strategically
penetrate deeper into many of our existing mar&etsenter into new markets. Additionally, in OctoB814, we continued to
expand our presence in new and existing marketstivt opening of one additional greenfield locat

« We have continued to focus growth through acquis#iin October 2014 with the strategic acquisitioh8pplicators Sales &
Service and Wholesale Roofing Supg

Applicators Sales & Service is a distributor ofidesitial roofing products and related accessovigs, four locations in Maine
and one location in New Hampshire. This acquisitomplemented an existing market in which we pnesip had operation:
allowing us to capture more of the localized mastetre and, in addition, provides us with a higk aficomplementary
products.

Wholesale Roofing Supply is a distributor of resiti@ roofing products and related accessories witline-acre facility
located in Grand Prairie, Texas. This acquisitiomplemented an existing market in which we previphad operations,
allowing us to capture more of the localized mastwetre.

o In August 2014, we acquired All Weather Productdistributor of residential and commercial roofimgducts and related
accessories, with three locations in the westeoripce of British Columbia, Canada. This acquisittwmplemented an
existing market in which we previously had openasicallowing us to capture more of the localizedkatshare

» In December 2012, we acquired Ford Wholesale Cleord Wholesale”) and Construction Materials Suplgth are
distributors of residential and commercial roofand related accessories with a combined five lonatin Northern
California. These acquisitions provided entry iatoew geographic market with no branch overlap withexisting
operations
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General

« In November 2012, we acquired McClure-Johnstorstidutor of residential and commercial roofing g¢wots and related
accessories, which was headquartered in the Rigislarea and had 14 branches at the time of atiquisincluding eight in
Pennsylvania, three in West Virginia, one in Wastdaryland and two in Georgia. This acquisition gé@emented an existing
market in which we previously had operations, aif@yws to capture more of the localized marketest

o InJuly 2012, we acquired Structural Materials C8tructural”), a distributor of residential andrmmercial roofing products

and related accessories headquartered in SanteCatigrnia. Structural has six locations in Losgi&hes and Orange
Counties and in the surrounding areas, which wegnatted into our existing Pacific Supply regiorSiouthern Californig

We sell all materials necessary to install, repkate repair residential and non-residential roofduding:
« Shingles;
« Single-ply roofing;
» Metal roofing and accessories;
« Modified bitumen;
o Built up roofing;
« Insulation;
« Slate and tile;
» Fasteners, coatings and cements; and
« Other roofing accessories.
We also sell complementary building products such a
« Vinyl siding;
« Doors, windows and millwork;
« Wood and fiber cement siding;
« Residential insulation; and

« Waterproofing systems.

The following is a summary of our net sales by picidyroup for the last three full fiscal years (320, “2013” and “2012").

Percentages may not total due to rounding.

Year Ended September 30

2014 2013 2012
Net Sales Mix Net Sales Mix Net Sales Mix
(dollars in thousands)
Residential roofing produc $ 1,108,51 47.7% $ 1,100,50: 49.1% $ 1,023,54 50.1%
Non-residential roofing produc 876,03: 37.% 822,72¢ 36.1% 757,90¢ 37.1%
Complementary building products 342,35’ 14.7% 317,48¢ 14.2% 262,20! 12.£%
$ 2,326,90! 100.(% $ 2,240,72 100.(% $ 2,043,65 100.(%

We have nearly 48,000 customers, none of whictviddally represent more than 2% of our total nésaMany of our customers

are small to mid-size contractors with relativetgited capital resources. We maintain strict creeliew and approval policies, which has
helped to keep losses from uncollectible customegivables within our expectations. Bad debt expam&oth 2014 and 2013 was less than

0.1% of

net sales, while bad debts in 2012 wefe22% of net sales.
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Our expenses consist primarily of the cost of potsipurchased for resale, labor, fleet, occupaaey,selling and administrative
expenses. We compete for business and may respaadipetitive pressures at times by lowering prinesder to maintain our market
share.

We opened 26 new branches in 2014, 10 new bramct® 3 and four in 2012. While we slowed the paiceew branch openings
following the economic downturn that began in 200&,began increasing our greenfield activity in2@hich we expect to continue throu
2015 as part of our continued growth strategy. @giby, when we open a new branch, we transfer ticelevel of existing business from an
existing branch to the new branch. This allowsrtee branch to commence with a base business ama@lédsvs the existing branch to target
other growth opportunities.

In managing our business, we consider all growttiuding the opening of new greenfield brancheggténternal (organic) growth
unless it results from an acquisition. When werredggrowth in existing markets or internal growtve include growth from existing and
newly opened greenfield branches but exclude grémeth acquired branches until they have been uadeownership for at least four full
fiscal quarters at the start of the fiscal repgriieriod. When we refer to regions, we are refgrtnour geographic regions. At September 30,
2014, we had a total of 264 branches in opera@am.existing market calculations for 2014 includ dranches and exclude 22 branches
because they were acquired after the start of/kseat Acquired markets for 2014 include McClure+ikibn, Ford Wholesale, Construction
Materials Supply and All Weather Products (See Matie the Consolidated Financial Statements).

When we refer to our net product costs, we araniafpto our invoice cost less the impact of shertn buying programs (also
referred to as “special buys” given the manner liriclv they are offered).

Results of operations
The following discussion compares our results afrafions for 2014, 2013 and 2012.

The following table presents information derivednfrour consolidated statements of operations egpdess a percentage of net s
for each of the respective the periods indicatedcéhtages may not total due to rounding.

Year ended September 3C

2014 2013 2012
Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of products sold 77.% 76.2 75.5
Gross profit 22 23.7 24.F
Operating expenses 18.4 17.€ 17.t
Income from operation 4.2 5.8 7.C
Interest expense, financing costs and other (0.4 (0.4) (0.9)
Income before provision for income tay 3.8 5.4 6.2
Provision for income taxes (1.5) (2.2) (2.5)
Net income 2.2% 3.2% 3.7%
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2014 compared to 2013

The following table presents a summary of our itssefl operations for 2014 and 2013, broken doweigting markets and acquit
markets.

Existing Markets Acquired Markets Consolidated
(dollars in thousands) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Net sales $ 219493 $ 2,132,69 $ 131,96¢ $ 108,02! $ 2,326,900 $ 2,240,72
Gross profit 498,89 506,21 28,94 25,18¢ 527,84( 531,39
Gross margit 22.1% 23.1% 21.%% 23.2% 22.1% 23.71%
Operating expensd®) 398,53 375,76t 30,44+ 25,90¢ 428,97 401,67¢
Operating expenses as a ¢
of net salet 18.2% 17.€% 23.1% 24.% 18.4% 17.%%
Operating income (los: $ 100,36: $ 130,44. $ (1,50) $ (722) % 98,86: $ 129,72:
Operating margil 4.€% 6.1% (1.1)% -0.7% 4.2% 5.8%

(1) In 2014 and 2013, we recorded amortization expéarseur acquired markets related to intangible @ssecorded under purchase
accounting of $3.2 million and $2.9 million, respeely.

Net Sales

Consolidated net sales increased $86.2 millior3,.8&%b6, to $2.33 billion in 2014, from $2.24 billiam 2013. Existing market sales
increased $62.2 million or 2.9%. Acquired markdésancreased $23.9 million due primarily to thé year's sales impact from the 2013
acquisitions, as well as the partial year impamtnfour 2014 acquisitions. There were 253 businags oh both 2014 and 2013. We attribute
the existing market sales increase primarily toftilewing factors:

« increased demand in our non-residential and congpliary products groups; and
» 26 new greenfield branches opened in 2014 and 2018;
partially offset by:

« softer demand in our residential products grougnduthe first half of 2014 due to the extended ertteather, increased
winter storm activity and colder temperatures thast of our markets experienced; ¢

« lower residential and commercial roofing averadinggprices during 2014, compared to 2013.

In 2014, we acquired three branches, opened 2tbr@uches, and closed two branches. We estimaimiet of inflation or
deflation on our sales and gross profit by lookimghanges in our average selling prices and gnasgins (discussed below). Average ove
selling prices declined across our residential @rmmercial (non-residential) roofing products limesing 2014, compared to 2013, with
residential roofing products down approximately92.@nd commercial (non-residential) roofing produwitg/n approximately 1.1%. Selling
prices for our complementary building products welatively flat year over year. During the sameiqut net product costs of residential
roofing products declined approximately 2.6%, conuia roofing products declined approximately 0.48%¢d complementary building
product prices declined approximately 0.5%. Thedpgross margins in 2014 (below) are an indicdtat the deflation in our net product
costs was less than the impact from the decreaseriaverage selling prices. Overall, year over gieglines in selling prices are estimated to
have adversely impacted existing net sales by appedely $38 million in 2014, compared to 2013. Were able to fully offset the overall
pricing impact with year over year increases irt unlume which we estimate contributed to an insesia net sales of approximately $100
million.

Existing market net sales by geographical regicneased (decreased) as follows: Northeast 2.4%:;MAahtic 0.2%; Southeast
(1.6%); Southwest (3.5%); Midwest 10.8%; West 17.8%d Canada 1.7%. These variations were primaailised by short-term factors such
as local market conditions, weather conditions stodm activity.
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Product group sales for our existing markets werfobows:

% Change
Based On
Average
Sales Per
Business
2014 2013 Change Day
Net Sales Mix Net Sales Mix
(dollars in thousands)
Residential roofing produc $ 1,063,111 48.4% $ 1,061,41 49.6% $ 1,70¢ 0.2% 0.2%
Non-residential roofing produc 828,49¢ 37.8% 781,48: 36.6% 47,01t 6.C% 6.C%
Complementary building produt 303,32: 13.8% 289,80: 13.6% 13,51¢ 4.7% 4.7%
$ 2,194,93 100.(% $ 2,132,69 100.(% $ 62,23¢ 2.5% 2.5%

For 2014, our acquired markets recognized salég4®f, $47.5 and $39.0 million in residential ragfproducts, non-residential
roofing products and complementary building produotspectively. The 2014 existing market salek2¢gf94.9 million plus the total sales
from acquired markets of $132.0 million agrees ffaed) to our reported total 2014 sales of $2,386l8on. For 2013, our acquired markets
recognized sales of $39.1, $41.2 and $27.7 milharesidential roofing products, non-residentiafing products and complementary
building products, respectively. The 2013 existimgrket sales of $2,132.7 million plus the totaésdtom acquired markets of $108.0 mill
agrees (rounded) to our reported total 2013 sdl§2,840.7 million. Prior year sales by productigr@re presented in a manner consistent
with the current year’s product classifications. Bé&tieve the existing market information is useuinvestors because it helps explain
organic growth or decline.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for consolidated and existing marke¢se as follows:

2014 2013 Change
(dollars in thousands)
Gross profit $ 52784 $ 531,39 $ (3,557) -0.7%
Existing market: 498,89° 506,21: (7,319 -1.4%
Gross margir 22. ™% 23.1% -1.C%
Existing market: 22.1% 23.1% -1.C%

Our existing market gross profit declined $7.3 imil| or (1.4%), in 2014, while our acquired marigdss profit increased by $3.8
million, to $28.9 million. In 2014, our overall amxisting market gross margins declined in 20122@%, from 23.7%, respectively, in 20:
The lower overall gross margins in 2014 were dumarily to pricing pressure across our residergiad commercial roofing products as a
result of soft demand, combined with a shift in eales mix during 2014 towards higher direct naieential product sales, which generally
have lower gross margins than our other produdislitonally, gross margins were adversely impadig@ decline in higher-margin
residential roofing product sales in 2014 as alteguhe earlier onset of winter weather, the extied wetter weather, increased winter storm
activity and colder temperatures during the firsf lof 2014 in most of our markets compared to Yeestr.

Direct sales (products shipped by our vendors thyréa our customers), which typically have subsdly lower gross margins (and
operating expenses) compared to our warehouse sghessented 18.2% and 17.5% of our net sale@lid and 2013, respectively. This
increase in the percentage of direct sales wasapitimattributable to the higher mix of naesidential roofing product sales, as well as g
sales to lumber yards and other building matetipptiers which are more commonly facilitated byedirshipment. There were no material
regional impacts from changes in the direct salixsaiour geographical regions.
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Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for consolidated and existingietswere as follows:

2014 2013 Change
(dollars in thousands)
Operating expense¢ $ 42897 $ 401,67¢ $ 27,30: 6.8%
Existing market: 398,53: 375,76¢ 22,76¢ 6.1%
Operating expenses as a % of s. 18.4% 17.% 0.5%
Existing market: 18.2% 17.€% 0.€%

Operating expenses in our existing markets incee&282.8 million, or 6.1% in 2014, to $398.5 milli@ompared to $375.8 million
2013, while our acquired markets expenses increlag&d.5 million to $30.4 million. The following ¢tors were the leading causes of the
higher operating expenses in our existing markets:

« 26 new greenfield openings during the year accalftteincreased payroll and employee benefit cob$®5.6 million,
increased warehouse and other general and adratiistexpenses of $3.8 million, and increasedrgebixpenses of $1.9
million in 2014;

. increased selling expenses of $1.3 million in 20@é to additional sales volumes from our existiranbhes;

« increased warehouse and general and administetpenses of $2.5 million from our existing branglzes

« increased bad debt expense of $2.9 million in 2014;

partially offset by:

« lower non-cash stock compensation expense of $Rlidmdue to an adjustment to previously issuedigrenance based
equity awards for the projection of the numberesitricted units that are expected to vest basextbievement of the
underlying related performance measu

In 2014, we expensed a total of $14.1 million foe amortization of intangible assets previouslprded under purchase accounting,
compared to $14.0 million in 2013. Our existing kedroperating expenses as a percentage of thedelat sales in 2014 was 18.2%
compared to 17.6% in 2013.

I nterest Expense, Financing Costs and Other

Interest expense, financing costs and other wad $tillion in 2014, compared to $8.2 million in Z@ue primarily to higher
average debt balances on our revolver as well digi@ubl outstanding borrowings against our equiptimancing facility in 2014. The
Company uses derivative financial instruments toage its exposure related to fluctuating cash flfrars changes in interest rates. The
impact of our interest rate derivative was to iaseour interest expense, financing costs and bth§2.3 million and $1.3 million in 2014
and 2013, respectively.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense was $34.9 million in 2014, caexgbéo $48.9 million in 2013. The decrease was arilypndue to a decline in

pre-tax income, as well as reduction in our effextax rate to 39.3% in 2014, compared to 40.2%TD 2013, which was generally driven

by benefits from state credits. We expect our fiamnual income tax rate to average approxima@ly ® 40%, excluding any discrete
items.
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2013 compared to 2012

The following table presents a summary of our itssefl operations for 2013 and 2012, broken doweigting markets and acquit
markets.

Existing Markets Acquired Markets Consolidated
(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Net sales $ 197561 $ 195294 $ 265,11: $ 90,71¢ $ 2,240,722 $ 2,043,65
Gross profit 462,19t 477,26: 69,19¢ 24,14 531,39 501,40«
Gross margit 23.2% 24.4% 26.1% 26.6% 23.71% 24.5%
Operating expensd®) 333,14« 332,06! 68,53 25,66 401,67 357,73.
Operating expenses as a ¢
of net salet 16.% 17.(% 25.% 28.2% 17.%% 17.5%
Operating income (los: $ 129,05 $ 145,19¢ $ 667 $ (1,52¢) $ 129,72. $ 143,67.
Operating margil 6.5% 7.4% 0.2% -1.7% 5.8% 7.C%

(1) In 2013 and 2012, we recorded amortization expéarseur acquired markets related to intangible @ssecorded under purchase
accounting of $7.9 million and $2.1 million, respeely.

Net Sales

Consolidated net sales increased $197.1 millio®, &6, to $2.24 billion in 2013 from $2.04 billiam 2012. Existing market sales
increased $22.7 million or 1.2% (0.4% based orsttrae number of business days). Acquired markes sadecased $174.4 million due to a
full year's sales impact from the 2012 acquisitiansl the partial year impact from our 2013 acqoisit. We attribute the existing market
sales increase primarily to the following factors:

« better weather conditions in the fourth quarte2@f3 allowed for an increase in roofing activitiespecially residential
roofing; and

« strong growth in complementary building producesal

Partially offset by:
« by heavy rains in several regions during the thirdrter of 2013 and fewer hail storms in 2013;

« avery high level of reeofing activity in 2012, including the beneficiatpact from mild weather in December 2011 and g
carry over business from the significant stormatgtiin 2011; anc

» aslowdown in non-residential roofing activity 613, primarily in the first half of the year.

In 2013, we acquired 19 branches, opened ten namches, and closed two branches. In 2013, we tsiveated the impact of
inflation or deflation on our sales and gross proyi looking at changes in our average sellinggziand gross margins (discussed below).
Average selling prices for residential and nondestial were flat overall (each less than +/-1% ement) in 2013 compared to 2012, while
complementary product prices were up approximaedy Overall, blended price increases contributedmroximate $10 million of
incremental sales in 2013 compared to 2012. Aduillg, we also benefited from 253 business day)it3 compared to 251 in 2012 which
contributed to an approximate $15 million of yeaeoyear existing market sales growth. We estirttetempact on existing market sales
related to year over year changes in unit volundgugied for the additional business days) was &rdeof approximately $3 million. Existing
market net sales by geographical region increadecréased) as follows: Northeast (3.7)%; Mid-Aia(i.8)%; Southeast 21.4%; Southwest
14.8%; Midwest (7.8%); West (2.9)%; and Canada 4.8B&se variations were primarily caused by shertfactors such as local economic
conditions, weather conditions and storm actiiigttcan influence the comparisons of a single ggagcal region.
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Product group sales for our existing markets werfobows:

For the Fiscal Years Ended

% Change
Based On
Average
Sales Per
Business
2013 2012 Change Day
Net Sales Mix Net Sales Mix
(dollars in thousands)
Residential roofing produc $ 977,82 49.5% $ 965,18t 49.2% $ 12,63: 1.2% 0.5%
Non-residential roofing produc 735,06: 37.2% 738,05: 37.&% (2,989 -0.4% -1.2%
Complementary building produt 262,72: 13.2% 249,70: 12.£% 13,02: 5.2% 4.4%
$ 1,975,61 100.% $ 1,952,94. 100.(% $ 22,67( 1.2% 0.4%

For 2013, our acquired markets recognized sal&d22.7, $87.7 and $54.7 million in residential ingfproducts, non-residential
roofing products and complementary building produotspectively. The 2013 existing market saleklg®75.6 million plus the total sales
from acquired markets of $265.1 million agrees fiaed) to our reported total 2013 sales of $2,244llfon. For 2012, our acquired markets
recognized sales of $58.4, $19.9 and $12.5 milliaresidential roofing products, non-residentialfing products and complementary
building products, respectively. The 2012 existinarket sales of $1,952.9 million plus the totaksdtom acquired markets of $90.8 million
agrees (rounded) to our reported total 2012 sdl§2,043.7 million. Prior year sales by productigr@re presented in a manner consistent
with the current year’s product classifications. Bétieve the existing market information is useuinvestors because it helps explain
organic growth or decline.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for consolidated and existing markeg¢se as follows:

2013 2012 Change
(dollars in thousands)
Gross profit $ 531,390 $ 501,40 $ 29,99: 6.C%
Existing market: 462,19¢ 477,26: (15,06%) -3.2%
Gross margir 23.1™% 24.5% -0.8%
Existing market: 23.%% 24.1% -1.C%

Our existing market gross profit declined $15. liomil, or (3.2%), in 2013, while our acquired margedss profit increased $45.1
million. Our overall and existing market gross nmasgdeclined to 23.7% and 23.4%, in 2013, respeltifrom 24.5% and 24.4% in 2012.
The decline in gross margin in 2013 was primarikg do product cost increases that have not beesistently passed through to customers
due to the soft demand environment.

Direct sales (products shipped by our vendors thyréa our customers), which typically have subsialy lower gross margins than
our warehouse sales, represented 17.5% and 17.8% okt sales in 2013 and 2012, respectively. daisease was primarily attributable to
the lower mix of non-residential roofing productesa which are more commonly facilitated by dirglcipment. There were no material
divisional impacts from changes in the direct sahs of our geographical regions.
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Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for consolidated and existingietswere as follows:

2013 2012 Change
(dollars in thousands)
Operating expense¢ $ 40167¢ $ 357,73 $ 43,94« 12.2%
Existing market: 333,14« 332,06! 1,07¢ 0.2%
Operating expenses as a % of s. 17.% 17.5% 0.4%
Existing market: 16.% 17.(% -0.1%

Operating expenses in our existing markets weegively flat year over year increasing $1.0 millian 0.3% in 2013, to $333.1
million, compared to $332.1 million in 2012, whoer acquired markets expenses increased by $48i0mto $68.5 million. The following
factors were the leading causes of the higher tipgraxpenses in our existing markets:

« increased payroll and related costs of $7.1 milpamarily due to higher salaries and wages, orertpay and payroll taxes;

« increased warehouse and selling expenses of $8i6mirom higher fuel and transportation costgtrand real estate taxes,
and credit card fees; al

« increased depreciation of $0.5 million from the aopof increased capital expenditures and acquiséctivity in recent year

Partially offset by:

« lower employee benefit costs of $3.6 million duenarily to lower bonus, profit-sharing accruals atdck compensation
expense

« decreased amortization expense of $1.6 million flower amortization of intangibles; and

« decreased bad debt expense of $4.5 million dueapityrto a lower percentage of past-due accoundsvany low historical
write-offs.

In 2013 and 2012, we expensed a total of $14.0aniind $9.4 million, respectively, for the amaatipn of intangible assets
recorded under purchase accounting, includingrtfpact from acquired markets. Our existing marketrating expenses as a percentage of
the related net sales were 16.9% and 17.0% in 2a0d32012, respectively.

I nterest Expense, Financing Costs and Other

Interest expense, financing costs and other wetzilion in 2013 compared to $17.2 million in Z0due primarily to lower debt
balances in 2013 and a marginally lower effectiteriest rate. The 2012 expense includes a chai$@ ®fmillion for the recognition of the
fair value of certain interest rate derivatives i million resulting from the refinancing of adebt. These negative factors on interest
expense, financing costs and other in 2012 wergafaoffset by the benefit from lower outstanditigal debt. Excluding the impact of our
interest rate derivatives, interest expense, fimgncosts and other would have been $1.3 and $iflismmiower in 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense was $48.9 million in 2013, &ecéfe tax rate of 40.2%, compared to $50.9 millio 2012, which was an
effective tax rate of 40.3%. We expect our futurawal income tax rate to average approximately®®2b40.5%, excluding any discrete
items.

Seasonality and quarterly fluctuations

In general, sales and net income are highest dorindjrst, third and fourth fiscal quarters, whigpresent the peak months of
construction and re-roofing, especially in our lotzes in the northern and mid-western United Statelsin Canada. We have historically
incurred low net income levels or net losses dutirgsecond quarter when our sales are substgritalér.

We generally experience an increase in inventagpants receivable and accounts payable durinthtteeand fourth quarters of tl
year as a result of the seasonality of our busin@sspeak cash usage generally occurs duringhthet dquarter, primarily because accou
payable terms offered by our suppliers typicallyendue dates in April, May and June, while our paatounts receivable collections
typically occur from June through November.
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We generally experience a slowing of our accoumtgivable collections during our second quarteinipaue to the inability of
some of our customers to conduct their businedfedtigely in inclement weather in certain of ouvidions. We continue to attempt to coll
those receivables, which require payment undestaurdard terms. We do not provide material conoasgo our customers during this
quarter of the year.

Our vendors are also affected by the seasonalifyeiindustry and are more likely to provide seasarcentives in our second
quarter as a result of the lower level of roofirgh\aty. We generally experience our peak workiagital needs during the third quarter after
we build our inventories following the winter seadunut before we begin collecting on most of ouirgpreceivables.

Certain quarterly financial data

The following table sets forth certain unauditedwerly data for the fiscal years 2014 and 2013Xtvhin the opinion of
management, reflect all adjustments (consistingoofal recurring adjustments) considered necedsagy/fair presentation of this data.
Results of any one or more quarters are not nedlyssaicative of results for an entire fiscal year of continuing trends. Totals may not t
due to rounding.

2014 2013
Qtrl Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtrl Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4
(unaudited; dollars in millions, except per share dta)
Net sales $ 5521 $ 384¢ $ 6634 $ 7265 $ 5137 $ 4165 $ 6272 $ 683.¢
Gross profit 126.¢ 86.¢ 150.¢ 163.: 126.¢ 99.7 147.: 157.7
Income (loss) from operatiol 27.1 (17.2) 45.¢ 43.2 32.2 1.¢ 48.C 47.€
Net income (loss $ 15C $ (127 $ 26 $ 241 $ 18z $ (02 $ 27z $ 27«
Earnings (loss) per sha- basic $ 031 $ (0285 $ 05/ $ 04 $ 03¢ $ - $ 05€¢ $ 0.5¢
Earnings (loss) per she- fully diluted $ 03C $ (025 $ 054 $ 04¢ $ 037 $ - $ 05t $ 0.5t
Quarterly sales as % of yr's sales 23.1™% 16.€% 28.5% 31.2% 22.% 18.t% 28.(% 30.£%
Quarterly gross profit as % of year’s
gross profit 24.(% 16.5% 28.6% 30.9% 23.% 18.8% 27.1% 29.7%
Quarterly income (loss) from
operations as % of year's income
from operation: 27./% 17.H9% 46.2% 43.7% 24.%% 1.5% 37.(% 36.7%

Earnings in the four quarters of fiscal 2014 ineldcho one-time or non-recurring activities.

Earnings in the first quarter of fiscal 2013 inabdda benefit of $1.3 million ($0.8 million net @), or $0.02 diluted earnings per
share, for the recognition of the fair value of iheffective portion of certain interest rate datives in interest expense, financing costs and
other and a charge of $0.9 million ($0.5 milliort nétax) for termination benefits, or $0.01 dildtearnings per share, associated with the
retirement of our CFO.

Earnings in the second quarter of fiscal 2013 idetlia benefit of $1.2 million ($0.8 million nettaix), or $0.02 diluted earnings per
share, for the recognition of the fair value of iheffective portion of certain interest rate detives in interest expense, financing costs and
other.

Impact of inflation

We believe that our results of operations are rettenmlly impacted by moderate changes in the emémnflation rate. In general,
we have historically been successful in passingrare increases from our vendors to our custonmeastimely manner. In 2013, pricing
increases from our vendors accelerated ahead efctheomic rate of inflation and we were unsuccéssfpassing all increases on to our
customers as a result of softer overall market itimms$ and extended winter weather. In 2014, cathsoft demand in the market drove
down pricing to end customers. We also experiedeatines in costs from vendors, although not endagiffset customer pricing declines.
As result of the aforementioned items, we recoghikeclines in our gross margin from 24.5% in 20123.7% in 2013 and 22.7% in 2014.
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Liquidity and capital resources

We had cash and cash equivalents of $54.5 milli@Geatember 30, 2014, compared to $47.0 milliocBegttember 30, 2013. Our net
working capital was $462.1 million at September W4, compared to $391.3 million at Septembei28Q3.

2014 compared to 2013

Operating activities consist primarily of net incemdjusted for non-cash items, including depremiaéind amortization and the
effect of working capital changes. Our net castvigied by operating activities was $55.5 million2@14, compared to $78.5 million in 2013.
Cash from operations decreased $23.0 million dinegpily to the decline in net income of $18.8 nuiliand an increase of cash used by
working capital changes of $3.6 million, net of thgpact of businesses acquired.

Investing activities consisted primarily of strategcquisitions, as well as capital expenditureggfowth and maintenance. Net cash
used in investing activities was $37.3 million ®12 compared to $89.5 million used in 2013. Caitgdenditures were $37.2 million in 2C
compared to $26.1 million in 2013. In addition, sgent $1.5 million on acquisitions in 2014, complai@$64.6 million in 2013. We
currently expect fiscal year 2015 capital expend#ito total between 1.0% and 1.2% of net salestlyndependent upon our sales volume
and exclusive of the impact of new branch openings.

Financing activities consisted primarily of borrogs and repayments related to the Revolver, Teramlamd equipment financing
facilities, as well as fees and expenses paid iimection with our Credit Facility. Net cash usediivancing activities was $9.8 million in
2014 compared to net cash provided of $18.0 miilibR013. In 2014, we had net repayments of $27l@munder our revolving credit
facilities and made scheduled repayments of $1lll&munder our term loan, compared to net bormys of $6.3 million under our
revolving credit facilities and scheduled repaymesft$11.3 million under our term loan in 2013. Aaichally, in 2014 we borrowed $25.4
million under our equipment financing facility tortinue to invest in our distribution fleet to sopipour greenfield activity and made
scheduled repayments of $5.0 million; comparatiwel2013, we made net repayments under our equipfimamcing facilities of $0.6
million. Stock option exercises provided for progeef $7.7 million in 2014 compared to $18.6 millim 2013.

2013 compared to 2012

Our net cash provided by operating activities w&8.% million in 2013 compared to $85.4 million i12. Cash from operations
decreased due to the decline in net income of $8lidn, lower noneash adjustments of $2.2 million and an increasmsli used by workir
capital changes of $1.7 million, net of the impafchusinesses acquired.

Net cash used in investing activities was $89.%ianilin 2013 compared to $157.0 million used in 20Capital expenditures were
$26.1 million in 2013 compared to $17.4 million2@12. In addition, we spent $64.6 million on acdgiges in 2013 compared to $141.0
million in 2012.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $X@ilion in 2013 compared to a cash use of $318aniin 2012. In 2013, we had
net borrowings of $6.3 million under our revolviogdit facilities and made scheduled repaymengl&f8 million under our term loan.
Comparatively in 2012, there were $90.6 milliodazn repayments, net of proceeds of $225.0 mifiiom our new term loan, $4.0 million
from new loans under our equipment financing faci$5.2 million of scheduled repayments underemquipment financing facility and $41
million under our new revolving lines of credit. tonnection with the new credit facility we paid.&million in deferred financing costs.
Stock option exercises provided for proceeds of &hdllion in 2013 compared to $21.5 million in 201

Capital Resources

Our principal source of liquidity at September 2014 was our cash and cash equivalents of $54lBménd our available
borrowings of $311.8 million under revolving linekcredit, which takes into account all of the detstenants under the Credit Facility (see
below), including the maximum consolidated totaklmge ratio and minimum consolidated interest e ratio. Borrowings outstanding
under the revolving lines of credit in the accomypag balance sheet at September 30, 2014 and Seete30, 2013 were classified as short-
term debt. This was because there is no currergataiion of a minimum level of outstanding revolberrowings in the twelve months
following 2014 and we paid off the September 3@, 2Borrowings in 2014.

Liquidity is defined as the current amount of réadvailable cash and the ability to generate adefiamounts of cash to meet the
current needs for cash. We assess our liquiditgrims of our cash and cash equivalents on hanthanability to generate cash to fund our
operating activities, taking into consideration seasonal nature of our business. Our cash egquigahre comprised of highly liquid money
market funds which invest primarily in commercialpgr or bonds with a rating of A-1 or better, aadlbcertificates of deposit.
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Significant factors which could affect future ligity include the following:
» the adequacy of available bank lines of credit;
- the ability to attract long-term capital with s&istory terms;
- cash flows generated from operating activities;
» acquisitions; and
» capital expenditures.

Our primary capital needs are for working capitaligations and other general corporate purposekjding acquisitions and capital
expenditures. Our primary sources of working capita cash from operations and cash equivalenpglsmented by bank borrowings. In the
past, we have paid for acquisitions from cash ordha financed them initially through increasedlbborrowings, the issuance of common
stock and/or other borrowings. We then repay ah fiorrowings with cash flows from operations. Vé@dfunded our past capital
expenditures through increased bank borrowing$yditg equipment financing, or through capital EEgsand then have reduced these
obligations with cash flows from operations.

We believe we have adequate current liquidity aradlability of capital to fund our present operaisp meet our commitments on «
existing debt and fund anticipated growth, inclgd@xpansion in existing and targeted market akascontinually seek potential acquisiti
and from time to time hold discussions with acdigsi candidates. If suitable acquisition opportigsitor working capital needs arise that
would require additional financing, we believe tbat financial position and earnings history prevalstrong base for obtaining additional
financing resources at competitive rates and teasisye have in the past. We may also issue additghrares of common stock to raise funds,
which we last did in December 2005, or we may igmeéerred stock.

Monitoring and Assessing Collectability of Accounts Receivable

We perform periodic credit evaluations of our castos and typically do not require collateral, althb we typically obtain payment
and performance bonds for any type of public warét have the ability to lien projects under certansumstances. Consistent with industry
practices, we require payment from most custométsmB0 days, except for sales to our commerdaiafing contractors, which we typically
require to pay in 60 days.

As our business is seasonal in certain geograpgioms, our customers’ businesses are also seaSafhes are lowest in the winter
months and our past due accounts receivable batenagercentage of total receivables generalhg@ses during this time. Throughout the
year, we closely monitor our receivables and reestinated reserves based upon our judgment offispacstomer situations, aging
accounts and our historical write-offs of uncoliblet accounts.

Our regional credit offices are staffed to managg monitor our receivable aging balances and ostesys allow us to enforce pre-
determined credit approval levels and properly flage new business. The credit pre-approval prabesstes the maximum requested credit
amount that each level of management can apprattetive highest credit amount requiring approvablly CEO and CFO. There are daily
communications with branch and field staff. Ourioegl offices conduct periodic reviews with theiabch managers, various regional
management staff and the VP-Credit. Depending ersthite of the respective region’s receivableseteviews can be weekly, bi-weekly or
monthly. Additionally, the regions are requiredstdomit a monthly receivable forecast to the VP-@r&h a monthly basis, the VP-Credit
will review and discuss these forecasts, as wedl pgor month recap, with the CEO and CFO.

Periodically, we perform a specific analysis ofadtounts past due and write off account balanteswe have exhausted
reasonable collection efforts and determined tmatikelihood of collection is remote based upom fibllowing factors:

« aging statistics and trends;

« customer payment history;

- review of the customer’s financial statements waesilable;
» independent credit reports; and

« discussions with customers.
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We still pursue collection of amounts written affdertain circumstances and credit the allowancarfiyg subsequent recoveries. In
the past, annual bad debt expense has averageedme®i05% and 0.4% of net sales. In 2014, badedgignse was less than 0.1% of net
sales. The continued reduction in bad debt expgeaeover year is primarily attributed to the coogd strengthening of the economy and
credit environment.

I ndebtedness
We currently have the following credit facilities:
« A senior secured credit facility in the United &gt
« A Canadian senior secured credit facility; and

« An equipment financing facility.

Senior Secured Credit Facility

On April 5, 2012, we replaced our prior credit fagiwith a new five-year senior secured creditiligcthat includes a $550 million
United States credit facility (individually, the “B. Credit Facility”)and a C$15 million ($13.4 million at September 3014) Canadian crec
facility (individually, the “Canadian Revolver”) Wi Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, and adégate of other lenders (combined, the
“Credit Facility”). We paid off debt of $304.0 nitin that was outstanding under the prior creditifgavith the proceeds from the Credit
Facility and from approximately $79 million of cash hand. The $550 million U.S Credit Facility cists of a revolving credit facility of
$325 million (the “U.S. Revolver”), which includessub-facility of $20 million for letters of creddand a $225 million term loan (the “Term
Loan”). The Term Loan has required amortizatio®%f per year that is payable in quarterly installtagwith the balance due on March 31,
2017. We may increase the Credit Facility by u200 million under certain conditions. There was3$illion, C$12.0 million ($10.7
million) and $196.9 million outstanding under theSURevolver, Canadian Revolver and Term Loanaesely, at September 30, 2014.
There were $8.1 million of outstanding standbyelettof credit at September 30, 2014.

Interest

The Credit Facility provides for borrowings under &J.S. Revolver and Canadian Revolver at a Base. Rae Base Rate for
borrowings under the U.S. Revolver is defined ashiigher of the Prime Rate, or the Federal Funds Ras 0.50%, plus a margin above that
rate. For borrowings made under the Canadian Revdive Base Rate is defined as the higher of #rea@ian Prime Rate, or the annual rate
of interest equal to the sum of the CDOR rate pl09%, plus a margin above that rate. The margibhdth base rates is currently 1.00% per
annum and can range from 0.50% to 1.50% per anmperdling upon our Consolidated Total Leverage Rasiaefined in the Credit
Facility.

Additionally, for Base Rate borrowings made undher t).S. Revolver, we may elect an optional interatst equal to the one (1), two
(2), three (3), or six (6) month LIBOR rate, plumargin above that rate. In connection with thescgbn, we are also required to elect an
interest period that corresponds with the undeglyitBOR rate that was elected. The margin is cutyeh00% per annum and can range f
1.50% to 2.50% per annum depending upon our Caitedeli Total Leverage Ratio, as defined in the Creatiility.

Current unused commitment fees on the revolvinditfacilities are 0.45% per annum. The unused cdment fees can range from
0.35% to 0.50% per annum, again depending upoCounsolidated Total Leverage Ratio.

As of September 30, 2014, outstanding borrowingkeuthe U.S. Revolver carried an interest rate leiguhe United States Prime
rate, plus 1.00% (4.25% at September 30, 2014)evehitstanding borrowings under the Canadian Revatarried an interest rate equal to
the Canadian Prime rate, plus 1.00% (4.00% at S#yme30, 2014). Borrowings under the Term Loaniedran interest rate equal to the
LIBOR rate, plus 2.00% (2.15% at September 30, p014

Financial covenants under the Credit Facility aréollows:
Maximum Consolidated Total Leverage R:

On the last day of each fiscal quarter, our Codstdid Total Leverage Ratio (the ratio of our oumdiag debt to our trailing twelve-
month earnings before interest, income taxes, degiren, amortization and stock-based compensataminore fully defined in the Credit

Facility, must not be greater than 3.50:1.0, 004L® under a one-time request by us subsequamt &equisition that meets the requirements
under the Credit Facility. At September 30, 20his5 tatio was 1.88:1.
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Minimum Consolidated Interest Coverage Ri

On the last day of each fiscal quarter, our Codsddid Interest Coverage Ratio (the ratio of ouliigatwelve-month earnings before
interest, income taxes, depreciation, amortizadiot stockbased compensation to our cash interest expensiesfgame period), as more fi
defined in the Credit Facility, must not be lessnl3.00:1.0. At September 30, 2014, this ratio Whg9:1.

At September 30, 2013, we were in compliance widsé covenants.

Substantially all of our assets, including the tapstock and assets of wholly-owned subsidiasesure obligations under the Credit
Facility.

Equipment Financing Facilities

As of September 30, 2014, there was a total of®81llion outstanding under prior equipment finargfacilities, with fixed interes
rates ranging from 2.33% to 4.60% and paymentsitoeigh September 2021. Our current equipment &imarfacility provides for up to $:
million of purchased transportation and materialdiemg equipment through October 1, 2014. The applie interest rate at the time of the
advances will be approximately 1.26% above thed&@-y&rm swap rate for 5-year loans and 1.21% abiwvd-year term swap rate for 7-year
loans. No further amounts can be drawn on pridfifies.
Contractual Obligations

At September 30, 2014, contractual obligations vesréllows (in millions):

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

(dollars in millions) 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter
Senior bank debt and revolv $ 29.6 $ 112 $ 174 $ - % - $ =
Equipment financing 5.4 5.1 5.C 4.2 4.4 6.8
Operating lease 34.1 29.t 22.¢ 15.7 11.1 19.2
Interest® 8.5 7.7 4.5 0.4 0.2 0.2
Non-cancelable purchase obligatidRk - - - - - -
Total $ 77.€ $ 53¢ $ 206.7 $ 20.5 $ 157 $ 26.5

() Interest payments reflect all currently scheduledants along with projected amounts to be paid utidesenior bank debt as
calculated using the current LIBOR rate at SepterBbe2014 for all future period
(@ In general, we purchase products under purchaggatibhs that are cancelable by us without cogtxpire after 30 days.

Capital Expenditures

We incurred capital expenditures of $37.2, $26.d $ti7.4 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respecyivil 2014, most of our capital
expenditures focused on upgrading our aging digioh fleet of straight trucks which are equippeithvepecialized equipment, including
cranes, hydraulic booms and conveyors. Historicallier 80% of our capital expenditures have gehebalen made for transportation and
material handling equipment. We currently expettri annual capital expenditures to be between h086l.2% of net sales, exclusive of
the impact of new branch openings and assumingawaglr economic and industry conditions.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements.
Critical accounting policies

Critical accounting policies are those that arehhintportant to the accurate portrayal of a compafiyiancial condition and resL
and require subjective or complex judgments, ofiera result of the need to make estimates aboutfteet of matters that are inherel
uncertain.

In order to prepare financial statements that aonftm accounting principles generally acceptecdaWnited States, commonly
referred to as U.S. GAAP, we make estimates anthgssons that affect the amounts reported in quarftial statements and accompanying

notes. Certain estimates are particularly sensitiveto their significance to the financial statataeand the possibility that future events may
be significantly different from our expectations.
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We have identified the following accounting polgithat require us to make the most subjective mmpdex judgments in order to
fairly present our consolidated financial positard results of operations.

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for employee and non-employee direttmksbased compensation using the fair value metii@dtcounting.
Compensation cost arising from stock options astficted stock awards granted to employees andengpioyee directors is recognized
using the straight-line method over the vestingqekmwhich represents the requisite service orgeardnce period. In calculating the expense
related to stock-based compensation, we estimaienoforfeitures and project the number of reséiicshares and units that are expected to
vest based on the related performance conditiomaddition, we report the benefits of tax dedutsiin excess of recognized compensation
cost as both a financing cash inflow and an opsgatash outflow.

I nterest Rate Swaps

We enter into interest rate swaps to minimize tblesrand costs associated with financing activitisswell as to maintain an
appropriate mix of fixed-and floating-rate debtel$wap agreements are contracts to exchange \aritel for fixed-interest rate payments
over the life of the agreements. For derivativérimaents designated as cash flow hedges, we réigereffective portions of changes in their
fair value, net of taxes, in other comprehensiw®ime. The effectiveness of the hedges is peridgiaabessed by management during the
lives of the hedges by 1) comparing the curremb$eof the hedges with the related hedged debtstarashey continue to coincide and 2)
through an evaluation of the ability of the couptaties to the hedges to honor their obligatiordeunithe hedges. Any ineffective portions of
the hedges are recognized in earnings throughesitexpense, financing costs and other.

Our refinancing transaction on April 5, 2012, résdlin hedge ineffectiveness on the derivativerimsents that expired in April
2013, as the underlying term debt being hedgedre@aid before the expiration of the derivativerimstents. This resulted in a charge to
interest expense, financing costs and other irthing quarter of 2012 for the fair value of theiglative instruments previously recorded as a
component of comprehensive loss. Subsequent chamgfes fair value of those swaps are also beisggrized in interest expense, financing
costs and other. Our derivative instrument entaredin 2012 is designated as a cash flow hedgeyffich we record the effective portions
changes in its fair value, net of tax, in other poefmensive income.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accountsefstimated losses due to the failure of our custereemake required payments.
We charge write-offs against our allowance for déullaccounts, although we still pursue collectiortertain circumstances and credit the
allowance for any subsequent recoveries.

I nventory Valuation

Product inventories represent one of our largesdtasand are recorded at net realizable valueg@alris to manage our inventory so
that we minimize out of stock positions. To do thig maintain an adequate inventory of up to 11 8R0Us at each branch based on sales
history. At the same time, we continuously striwdgtter manage our slower moving classes of imvgntVe monitor our inventory levels by
branch and record provisions for excess inventdrée®d on slower moving inventory. We define pageikcess inventory as the amount of
inventory on hand in excess of the historical usageluding items purchased in the last three nsntfe then review our most recent history
of sales and adjustments of such excess inventahapply our judgment as to forecasted demand et €actors, including liquidation
value, to determine the required adjustments tagadizable value. In addition, at the end of epehr, we evaluate our inventory at each
branch and write off and dispose of obsolete prtsd@ur inventories are generally not susceptiblethnological obsolescence.

During the year, we perform periodic cycle coumntd arite off excess or damaged inventory as neeffegear-end, we take a
physical inventory and record any necessary additiorrite-offs.

Vendor Rebates

Typical arrangements with our vendors provide fotaireceive a rebate of a specified amount afecaghieve any of a number of
measures generally related to the volume of ouctges over a period of time. We reserve thes¢aebmaeffectively reduce our cost of si
in the period in which we sell the product. Throoghthe year, we estimate the amount of rebatesvadale for the periodic programs based
upon the expected level of purchases. We contipuallise these estimates to reflect actual retestased based on actual purchase levels.
Historically, our actual rebates have been within @éxpectations used for our estimates. If wetéadchieve a measure which is required to
obtain a vendor rebate, we will have to recordagh in the period in which we determine the adter measure for the vendor rebate will
not be met to the extent the vendor rebate wasatgd and included as a reduction to cost of sales.
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If market conditions were to change, vendors mangk the terms of some or all of these progranthofgh these changes would
not affect the amounts which we have recordedeéltd products already purchased, it may impacgoass margin on products we sell or
revenues earned in future periods.

Revenue Recognition
We recognize revenue when the following four basiteria are met:
« persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
« delivery has occurred or services have been redgere
« the price to the buyer is fixed or determinabla] an
« collectability is reasonably assured.

We generally recognize revenue at the point of salgoon delivery to the customer’s site. For goshipped by third party carriers,
we recognize revenue upon shipment since the teren6OB shipping point. Approximately 82% of owerues are for products delivered
by us or picked up by our customers at our faesitiwhich provides for timely and accurate revamgegnition.

We also ship certain products directly from the ofanoturer to the customer. Revenues are recoguiged notifications of
deliveries from our vendors. Delays in receivingj\agy notifications could impact our financial téts, although it has not been material to
our consolidated results of operations in the past.

We also provide certain job site delivery serviaelich include crane rentals and rooftop delivedgsertain products, for which tt
associated revenues are recognized upon completibie services. These revenues represent lesd #%af our net sales.

All revenues recognized are net of sales taxesa®ell, allowances for discounts and estimatednetuvrhich are provided for at the
time of pick up or delivery. In the past, customaurns have not been material to our consolidagsdlts of operations. All sales taxes
collected are subsequently remitted to the appaitggovernment authorities.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using the liability hoet, which requires us to recognize a currentitbility or asset for current taxes
payable or refundable and a deferred tax liabditasset for the estimated future tax effects mipterary differences between the financial
statement and tax reporting bases of assets dailitiks to the extent that they are realizablefdded tax expense (benefit) results from the
net change in deferred tax assets and liabilitigsd the year.

FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes (“ASC 740") préses a recognition threshold and measurement ati¢ritor the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tatigosaken or expected to be taken in a tax retBased on this guidance, we analyze our
filing positions in all of the federal and stateigdictions where we are required to file incomerngturns, as well as all open tax years in these
jurisdictions. Tax benefits from uncertain tax piasis are recognized if it is more likely than tiwt the position is sustainable based sc
on its technical merits.

Goodwill

We test goodwill for impairment in the fourth quaarof each fiscal year or at any other time whepaimment indicators exist.
Examples of such indicators include a significardrgye in the business climate, unexpected comgretitiss of key personnel or a decline in
our market capitalization below our net book value.

We perform a qualitative assessment based on edonimiustry and company-specific factors as thiainstep in the annual
goodwill impairment test for all or selected rejmgtunits. Based on the results of the qualitatissessment, companies are only required to
perform Step 1 of the annual impairment test fog@orting unit if the company concludes that inisre likely than not that the unit’s fair
value is less than its carrying amount.

To the extent we conclude it is more likely than that a reporting unit's fair value is less themdarrying amount, the two-step

approach is applied. The first step would requicemparison of each reporting unit's fair valuerie respective carrying value. If the
carrying value exceeds the fair value, a secorglistperformed to measure the amount of impairrtesst, if any.
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We assess goodwill for impairment at the reporting level, which is defined as an operating segmeione level below an
operating segment, referred to as a component(basiness for which discrete financial informati® available and regularly reviewed by
component managers). We currently have five compisnghich we evaluate for aggregation.

We evaluate the distribution methods, sales midl,@erating results of each of our components terdene if these characteristics
have or will be sustained over a long-term bagis.gtirposes of this evaluation, we would expectammponents to exhibit similar economic
characteristics 3-5 years after events such asguisition within our core roofing business or mg@@ent/business restructuring. This
evaluation also considers major storm activityamal economic challenges that may impact the ghart operations of an individual
component. Components that exhibit similar econarharacteristics are subsequently aggregated isitogée reporting unit.

Based on our evaluation at August 31, 2014, itdetermined that all of our components exhibitedlsineconomic characteristics
and therefore were aggregated into a single reqpunit (collectively the “Reporting Unit”).

We concluded that the fair value of the Reportingtias more likely than not exceeded its respeatarrying value at the goodwill
measurement date. This position is consistent th#?014 operating results in which sales for thpdRting Unit exceeded those in the prior
year by 3.8%. We noted that gross profit, as cosgbsw prior year, decreased by 0.7%; however, agpaced to 2012, gross profit I
increased 5.3%. The decrease in the gross marffigeteewhat we believe to be short term pricingsgreres experienced by us. We expect the
Reporting Unit to experience moderate growth inrtear future . Our analysis further noted the totatket capitalization exceeded our
carrying value by approximately 73% at August 31142 This compares to 140% and 107% for that sagasuore at August 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively. In addition, we did not identhy macroeconomic or industry conditions or ¢ekited factors that would indicate the
value of the Reporting Unit was more likely than twobe less than its respective carrying value.

Lastly, there have been no events or circumstasioese the date of the above assessments that woaldye our conclusion. If

circumstances change or events occur to indicéambre likely than not that the fair value of ®eporting Unit (under the guidelines
discussed above) has fallen below its carryingaslwe would test such Reporting Unit for impairtnen
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ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

We are exposed to certain market risks as pantiobn-going business operations. Our primary exposicludes changes in interest
rates and foreign exchange rates.

Interest Rate Risk

Our interest rate risk relates primarily to theiahle-rate borrowings under our Credit Facility €Tfollowing discussion of our
interest rate swaps (see “Financial DerivativeddbWwgis based on a 10% change in interest ratess@ thanges are hypothetical scenarios
used to calibrate potential risk and do not represar view of future market changes. As the hypttal figures discussed below indicate,
changes in fair value based on the assumed changies generally cannot be extrapolated becaeseldtionship of the change in
assumption to the change in fair value may notrimat. The effect of a variation in a particulaswasption is calculated without changing any
other assumption. In reality, changes in one fattay result in changes in another, which may mggmifcounteract the sensitivities.

At September 30, 2014, we had $196.9 and $18.5milif outstanding term loans and revolver borr@sirrespectively, under our
Credit Facility, and $31.0 million of equipmentdincing outstanding. Borrowings under our creditlifgdncur interest on a floating rate
basis while borrowings under our equipment leastitias incur interest on a fixed rate basis. tmoection with the placement of our Credit
Facility, we entered into an interest rate swaainotional amount equal to our outstanding teram that effectively converts our floating
rate interest under the term loan to a fixed r&te 88%. In consideration of our hedging instrunseat of September 30, 2014, only the $
million of borrowings under our revolvers were fdijto variable floating interest rates.

As of September 30, 2014, our weighted-averagetffeinterest rate was 3.35% on total debt outhtay) compared to 3.32% on
total debt outstanding at September 30, 2013. Ate®eber 30, 2014, a hypothetical 10% increasetereast rates in effect at that date would
have increased annual interest expense by $0.ibmill

As discussed above, we enter into interest rat@swaminimize the risks and costs associated fivitncing activities, as well as to
maintain an appropriate mix of fixed-and floatireder debt. The swap agreements discussed below affettively exchange variable-rate for
fixed-interest rate payments over the life of tgee@ments. The aggregate fair value of these sregpssented an unrealized loss of
$2.1 million at September 30, 2014.

Financial Derivatives

We use derivative financial instruments to managexposure related to fluctuating cash flows fidranges in interest rates. Use of
derivative financial instruments in hedging progsasnbjects us to certain risks, such as marketaauit risks. Market risk represents the
possibility that the value of the derivative instrent will change. In a hedging relationship, tharaje in the value of the derivative is offse
a great extent by the change in the value of tlieetiying hedged item. Credit risk related to detives represents the possibility that the
counterparty will not fulfill the terms of the ceoatt. The notional, or contractual, amount of cemivhtive financial instruments is used to
measure interest to be paid or received and daegpiesent our exposure due to credit risk. Ourects derivative instruments are with large
financial counterparties rated highly by nationadgognized credit rating agencies.

We use interest rate derivative instruments to menke risk related to fluctuating cash flows fromerest rate changes by
converting a portion of its variable-rate borrowsngto fixed-rate borrowings. As noted above, aS&ftember 30, 2014 our outstanding
interest rate derivative instruments included ag$a%nillion interest rate swap with interest payiseat a fixed rate of 1.38%, This interest
rate swap is designated as a cash flow hedge aodizaes at $2.8 million per quarter and expiresvtarch 31, 2017.

For derivative instruments designated as cash lfledges, we record the effective portions of chanyéseir fair value, net of taxes,
in other comprehensive income. The effectiveneshehedges is periodically assessed by managetagng the lives of the hedges by 1)
comparing the current terms of the hedges withréketed hedged debt to assure they continue teicirand 2) through an evaluation of the
ability of the counterparties to the hedges to hdheir obligations under the hedges. Any ineffexiportions of the hedges are recognized in
earnings through interest expense, financing @wdsother. Our refinancing transaction on Apri2612 resulted in hedge ineffectiveness on
the derivative instruments that expired in Aprill3Qas the underlying term debt being hedged waadeefore the expiration of the
derivative instruments. This resulted in a $4.9iarilcharge to interest expense, financing costsather in the third quarter of 2012 for the
fair value of the derivative instruments previousdgorded as a component of comprehensive losse§ubknt changes in the fair value of
those swaps were recognized in interest expemsding costs and other.
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We record any differences paid or received onntsrest rate hedges as adjustments to intereshegp@nancing costs and ott
The table below presents the combined fair valdi¢lseninterest rate derivative instruments:

Unrealized Losses

Location on September 30 September 30 Fair Value
Instrument Balance Sheet 2014 2013 Hierarchy
(dollars in thousands)
Designated interest rate swaps (effec Accrued expense  $ 2,12¢ $ 3,731 Level 2

The fair values of the interest rate hedges weteragned through the use of pricing models, whitihize verifiable inputs such
market interest rates that are observable at coryntuoted intervals (generally referred to as theBBOR Curve”) for the full terms of th
hedge agreements. These values reflect a Leveb®urement under the applicable fair value hierarchy

The table below presents the amounts of gain (lossbhe interest rate derivative instruments recsghin other comprehensi
income (OCI):

2014 2013 2012
(dollars in thousands)
Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in OCI (net of tax
Designated interest rate swe $ 97z $ 1,39¢ $ (3,660)
Non-designated interest rate swaps (reclassified frocoraulated OCI - - 2,98¢

The table below presents the amounts of gain (loss}the interest rate derivative instruments retzsgh in interest expen:
financing costs and other:

2014 2013 2012
(dollars in thousands)
Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Interest Experms Financing Costs anc
Other
Non-designated interest rate swe $ - $ 7 $ 2,311
Non-designated interest rate swaps (reclassifiga ficcumulated OCI) - - (4,932
$ - $ 79 (2,627

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We have exposure to foreign currency exchangéltateiations for revenues generated by our operatautside the United States,
which can adversely impact our net income and fass. Approximately 8% of our revenues in 2014 evderived from sales to customers
in Canada. This business is primarily conducteithénlocal currency. This exposes us to risks aasetiwith changes in foreign currency that
can adversely affect revenues, net income andftagh. We do not enter into financial instrumerdsiianage this foreign currency exchange
risk.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. (the Caypas of September 30, 2014 and
2013 and the related consolidated statements oatipes, comprehensive income, stockholders’ ety cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended September 30, 2014. Timssecial statements are the responsibility of@mnpan’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptexiused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of Beacon
Roofing Supply, Inc. at September 30, 2014 and 2848 the consolidated results of its operatiomkincash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended September 30, 2014 nfoonity with U.S. generally accepted accountinggiples.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@nited States), Beacon Roofing
Supply, Inc.’s internal control over financial repog as of September 30, 2014, based on critst@béshed in Internal Contrel Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@mgtions of the Treadway Commission (1992 franrkjvand our report dated
November 25, 2014 expressed an unqualified opitiiereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

McLean, Virginia

November 25, 201
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BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share amounts)

September 30, September 30,
2014 2013
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 54,47: $ 47,027
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $8,510 éh83R at September 30, 2014 and
September 30, 2013, respectiv 360,80: 329,67
Inventories, ne 301,62¢ 251,37(
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 66,82¢ 62,42
Deferred income taxes 14,61( 14,59
Total current asse 798,33t 705,08:
Property and equipment, r 88,56¢ 67,65¢
Goodwill 466,20t 469,20:
Other assets, net 80,78: 96,75!
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,433,890 $ 1,338,69
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 220,83: $ 182,91
Accrued expense 80,28t 68,29¢
Borrowings under revolving lines of cre: 18,51¢ 47,42¢
Current portions of long-term obligations 16,60: 15,09¢
Total current liabilities 336,23! 313,73t
Senior notes payable, net of current por 185,62! 196,87!
Deferred income taxe 64,10( 61,00:
Long-term obligations under equipment financing atiter, net of current portion 30,83t 12,72¢
Total liabilities 616,79! 584,34(
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder equity:
Common stock (voting); $0.01 par value; 100,000 ,848res authorized; 49,392,774 issue
and outstanding at September 30, 2014; and 48,9@4sSued and 48,898,622 outstandir
September 30, 201 492 48¢
Undesignated Preferred Stock; 5,000,000 sharesm@zed, none issued or outstand - -
Additional paic-in capital 328,05¢ 312,96:
Retained earning 495,12¢ 441,28
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (6,579 (376
Total stockholders’ equity 817,10: 754,35¢
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY $ 1,433,890 $ 1,338,69

See accompanying notes.
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BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Year Ended September 30

2014 2013 2012

Net sales $ 2,326,900 $ 2,240,720 $ 2,043,65

Cost of products sold 1,799,06! 1,709,32 1,542,25.
Gross profit 527,84( 531,39 501,40

Operating expenses 428,97 401,67¢ 357,73
Income from operation 98,86: 129,72: 143,67.

Interest expense, financing costs and other 10,09t 8,24 17,17:
Income before provision for income tay 88,76¢ 121,47: 126,49¢

Provision for income taxes 34,92: 48,86 50,93«
Net income $ 53,84t $ 72,600 $ 75,56¢
Net income per shar

Basic $ 1.0¢ $ 15 $ 1.62

Diluted $ 1.06 $ 147 $ 1.5¢
Weighted average shares used in computing net iag@nshare

Basic 49,227,46 48,472,24 46,718,94

Diluted 49,947,69 49,385,33 47,840,96

See accompanying notes.
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BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(in thousands)

Year Ended September 30

2014 2013 2012
Net income $ 53,84¢ $ 72,600 $ 75,56¢
Other comprehensive income/(los
Foreign currency translation adjustm (7,175 (4,407 5,28:
Unrealized gain due to change in fair value of\dgives, net of tax expense of $635,
$868 and $483, respectively 972 1,39¢ 74€
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (6,207) (3,002) 6,031
Total comprehensive income $ 47,64 $ 69,60f $ 81,59¢

See accompanying notes.
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Balances at September 30, 2(

Issuance of common sto
Stoclk-based compensatic
Net income
Foreign currency translation
adjustmen
Unrealized gain on financial
derivatives, net

Balances at September 30, 2(

Issuance of common sto
Stoclk-based compensatic
Net income

Foreign currency translation
adjustmen

Unrealized gain on financial
derivatives, net

Balances at September 30, 2(

Issuance of common sto
Stoclk-based compensatic
Net income
Foreign currency translation
adjustmen
Unrealized gain on financial
derivatives, net

Balances at September 30, 2014

BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

(in thousands, except share amounts)

Accumulated

Common Stock Additional Other Total
Number Paid-in Retained  Comprehensive Stockholders’
of Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity
46,154,10 462 248,26( 293,11( (3,405 538,42

1,513,041 15 24,05 24,06¢
7,87 7,87

75,56¢ 75,56¢

5,28 5,28:

74€ 74€

47,667,14 477 280,18 368,67 2,62¢ 651,96:
1,231,47! 11 23,51 23,520
9,26¢ 9,26¢

72,60° 72,60°

(4,400 (4,40))

1,39¢ 1,39¢

48,898,622 48¢ 312,96: 441,28 (37€) 754,35t
494,15 5 7,67¢ 7,68(
7,422 7,422

53,84¢ 53,84¢

(7,17%) (7,175

972 972

49,392,77 $ 49 $ 328,05¢ $  495,12¢ $ (6,579 $ 817,10:

See accompanying notes.
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BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Year Ended September 30

2014 2013 2012
Operating activities
Net income $ 53,84¢ $ 72,607 % 75,56¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 30,29 30,41 24,35
Stoclk-based compensatic 7,42 9,26¢ 7,87:
Certain interest expense and other financing ¢ 81¢€ (1,547 4,35¢
Gain on sale of fixed asse (1,329 (1,487 (1,279
Deferred income taxe 3,07¢ 4,41¢ 7,70C
Adjustment of liability for contingent consideratiand othe 12¢ - 25C
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the &ffetbusinesses acquire
Accounts receivabl (32,989 (22,790 19,80«
Inventories (50,84¢) (16,037 13,33¢
Prepaid expenses and other as (4,790 8,34: (22,449
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 49,85¢ (4,709 (44,15Y)
Net cash provided by operating activit 55,49} 78,49 85,36!
Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipm (37,239 (26,120 (17,409
Acquisition of businesse (1,519 (64,606) (141,049
Proceeds from sales of assets 1,437 1,23t 1,41¢
Net cash used in investing activiti (37,316 (89,49) (157,039
Financing activities
Borrowings under revolving lines of credit, netrepayment: (27,62¢) 6,29¢ 41,27:
Borrowings under equipment financing facilities antder 25,373 3,99¢ 4,03¢
Repayments under equipment financing facilities atfer (5,009 (4,549 (5,219
Borrowings under senior term lo, - - 225,00(
Repayments under senior term Ic (11,250 (11,250 (315,60¢)
Payment of deferred financing co - - (5,377
Proceeds from exercise of optic 7,68( 18,57¢ 21,47¢
Excess tax benefit from equity-based compensation 1,03( 4,94 2,58¢
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (9,799 18,01: (31,829
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (93¢) (199) 67€
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 7,44 6,822 (102,82)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 47,02% 40,20¢ 143,02°
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 54,47 $ 47,027 $ 40,20¢
Supplemental cash flow information
Cash paid during the year fc
Interest $ 9,31z $ 12,012 % 11,63¢
Income taxes, net of refun $ 23,47¢  $ 29,68 $ 55,81

See accompanying notes.
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BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2014
(dollars in thousands, except per share data or agherwise indicated)

1. The Company
Business

Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. (the “Company”) is ading distributor of residential and non-residdmi@fing materials and other
complementary building materials to customers irsté2es within the United States and six provincg3anada. The Company operates its
business under regional and local trade namesCoh&pany’s current subsidiaries are Beacon Salesiitign, Inc., Beacon Canada, Inc.
and Beacon Roofing Supply Canada Company. The Caynpas formed on August 22, 1997 and is incorpdratdelaware.

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesmesquires management to make estimates and assomitat affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosofe®ntingent assets and liabilities, at the datde consolidated financial statements. Actual
amounts could differ from those estimates.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of the Company and its wholly-owned subsigs. All inter-company
transactions have been eliminated. Certain refilessbns have been made to the prior year infoionaio conform to the current year
presentation.

Fiscal Year

The fiscal years presented are the years endediSkeet 30, 2014 (“2014”"), September 30, 2013 (“2018d September 30, 2012
(“2012"). Each of the Company'’s first three quastends on the last day of the calendar month.

Industry Segment Information

Based on qualitative and quantitative criteria, Gtmenpany has determined that it operates withinrepertable segment, which is
wholesale distribution of building materials. Fleaefer to the “Goodwill” summary below for dissies of the Company’s reporting unit
and the related impairment review.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmensith maturities of three months or less when paséu to be cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents also include unsettéstit@ard transactions. Cash equivalents are ceegpiof money market funds which invest
primarily in commercial paper or bonds with a rgtof A-1 or better, and bank certificates of deposi

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Acamnts

Accounts receivables are recorded at invoiced amscnd generally do not bear interest. The allowdac doubtful accounts
reflects the Compang’estimate of credit exposure, determined prinkifal the basis of its collection experience, agifigs receivables ar
significant individual account credit risk.

Inventories and Rebates

Inventories, consisting substantially of finisheabds, are valued at the lower of cost or marketrgeizable value). Cost is
determined using the moving weighted-average ceshoa.

The Company’s arrangements with vendors typicaibywioe for rebates after it makes a special purelaai/or monthly, quarterly
and/or annual rebates of a specified amount ofideration payable when a number of measures hasre &chieved, generally related to a
specified cumulative level of calendar-year purelsa3he Company accounts for such rebates as eti@dof the inventory value until the
product is sold, at which time such rebates redost of sales in the consolidated statements aftipas. Throughout the year, the Company
estimates the amount of the periodic rebates based the expected level of purchases. The Compamynually revises these estimates to
reflect actual rebates earned based on actual gsedevels. Amounts due from vendors under thesagements as of September 30, 2014
and September 30, 2013 totaled $58.4 million ar@iZillion, respectively, and are included in “Pa&l expenses and other current assets”
in the accompanying consolidated balance sh
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BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2014
(dollars in thousands, except per share data or agherwise indicated)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment acquired in connection adttjuisitions are recorded at fair value as of tite df the acquisition and
depreciated utilizing the straight-line method othex remaining lives. All other additions are retmd at cost, and depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over the followirggimated useful lives:

Asset Class Estimated Useful Life

Buildings and improvemen 40 years

Equipment 3 to 7 year:

Furniture and fixture 7 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of the estimasefulilife or the term of the lease, considering

renewal options expected to be exerci

In accordance with its policy, the Company revighesestimated useful lives of its fixed assetsmoragoing basis. This review
indicated that the actual lives of certain disttibn fleet equipment were longer than the estimatgaful lives used for depreciation purposes
in the Company’s financial statements. As a resfilective January 1, 2014, the Company changesktimates of the useful lives of its
distribution fleet equipment (included in the equgnt asset class) to better reflect the estimatedgs during which these assets will remain
in service. The estimated useful lives of the Comyfsadistribution fleet equipment that previousleesaged five years were adjusted to an
average of seven years. The effect of this chamgstimate was to reduce 2014 depreciation exdgn$8.1 million, increase 2014 net
income by $1.9 million, and increase 2014 basicdihded earnings per share by $0.04.

Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue when the followang basic criteria are met:
« persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
» delivery has occurred or services have been redgere
« the price to the buyer is fixed and determinabhet a
« collectability is reasonability assured.
Based on these criteria, the Company generallygrézes revenue at the point of sale or upon dalit@the customer site. For got
shipped by third party carriers, the Company recamrevenue upon shipment since the terms areaBneOB shipping point. The

Company also arranges for certain products to st directly from the manufacturer to the custoriibe Company recognizes the gross
revenue for these sales upon shipment as the sefSOB shipping point.

The Company also provides certain job site deliaenwices, which include crane rentals and rood@preries of certain products,
for which the associated revenues are recognized apmpletion of the services. These revenues septdess than 1% of the Company’s
sales.

All revenues recognized are net of sales taxesdell, allowances for discounts and estimatediret@ales taxes collected are
subsequently remitted to the appropriate governmetiorities.
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BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2014
(dollars in thousands, except per share data or agherwise indicated)

Shipping and Handling Costs

The Company classifies shipping and handling castssisting of driver wages and vehicle expensesperating expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operatiinipping and handling costs were approximatelyl$45 in 2014, $103,544 in 2013,
and $85,888 in 2012.

Financial Derivatives

The Company enters into interest rate swaps tomiei the risks and costs associated with finanattiyities, as well as to mainte
an appropriate mix of fixed-rate and floating-rdébt. The swap agreements are contracts to exclvanigéle-rate for fixed-interest rate
payments over the life of the agreements. The Cogip&urrent derivative instruments are designatedash flow hedges, for which the
Company records the effective portions of changekaeir fair value, net of tax, in other comprehieasncome. The Company recognizes any
ineffective portion of the hedges in earnings tigtointerest expense, financing costs and other Cidmpany’s refinancing transaction in
April 2012 resulted in hedge ineffectiveness ondbavative instruments that expired in April 2083,the underlying term debt being hedged
was repaid before the expiration of the derivaingtruments.

Concentrations of Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subjea Bompany to concentration of credit risk, congistcipally of accounts
receivable. The Company’s accounts receivable dmeaply from customers in the building industrnchied in the United States and Canada.
Concentration of credit risk with respect to acasueceivable is limited due to the large numbesustomers comprising the Company’s
customer base. The Company performs credit evahmtf its customers; however, the Company’s pasiayot to require collateral. At
September 30, 2014 and 2013, the Company had nificémt concentrations of credit risk.

The Company purchases a major portion of its prisdivom a small number of vendors. Approximatelp4irds of the Company’s
total cost of inventory purchases was from 12 ven@o2014, 11 vendors in 2013 and 12 vendors P20 addition, more than 10% of the
total cost of purchases was made from each of trerdors in 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Impairment losses are required to be recorded mgrlived assets when indicators of impairment aes@nt and the undiscounted
cash flows estimated to be generated by thosesamsetess than the assets’ carrying value. If sgsbts are considered to be impaired, the
impairment to be recognized is the total by whivd ¢arrying value exceeds the fair value of thetass

Amortizable and Other Intangible Assets

The Company amortizes its identifiable intangildeeds, currently consisting of non-compete agre&smneunstomer relationships and
deferred financing costs, because these assetdihd@dives. Non-compete agreements are amortaed straightine basis over the terms
the associated contractual agreements; custonatioreship assets are amortized on an accelerasisi lsed on the expected cash flows
generated by the existing customers; and defeimadding costs are amortized over the lives ofatssociated financings. Trademarks are not
amortized because they have indefinite lives. Tam@any evaluates its trademarks for impairmentroaraual basis based on the fair value
of the underlying assets.

The Company applied the provisions of Accountingn8ards No. 2012-0Mtangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Testing
Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairmenthich permits an entity the option first to assggalitative factors to determine whether the
existence of events and circumstances indicatesttisamore likely than not that the indefiniteid intangible asset is impaired.

Based on management’s 2014 year-end review, thep@ayrconcluded that there were no indicators ofiinmpent and therefore it
was more likely than not that the fair value of tiker intangible assets exceeded the net cargyimaunt and there was no reason to perform
the twostep impairment test as of September 30, 2014tHeoevaluation of trademarks, the main factor nee was the revenue base, wi
was relied upon in applying the royalty savingshodtat inception, to be derived from covered prodates made under the trademarks. The
Company also reviewed the latest projected revennesidition, there have been no specific eventsroumstances that management
believes have negatively affected the value otthdemarks.
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BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2014
(dollars in thousands, except per share data or agherwise indicated)

Goodwill

The Company tests goodwill for impairment in thartb quarter of each fiscal year or at any otheetivhen impairment indicators
exist. Examples of such indicators include a sigaift change in the business climate, unexpectegbettion, loss of key personnel or a
decline in the Company’s market capitalization laetbe Company’s net book value.

The Company performs a qualitative assessment lmsedonomic, industry and company-specific facéarshe initial step in the
annual goodwill impairment test for all or selectegorting units. Based on the results of the tatalie assessment, companies are only
required to perform Step 1 of the annual impairntest for a reporting unit if the company conclutiest it is more likely than not that the
unit’s fair value is less than its carrying amount.

To the extent the Company concludes it is mordylikean not that a reporting unit’s fair value és$ than its carrying amount, the
two-step approach is applied. The first step waatflire a comparison of each reporting unit’s Yaiue to the respective carrying value. If
the carrying value exceeds the fair value, a sesteylis performed to measure the amount of imgaitross, if any.

The Company assesses goodwill for impairment atgperting unit level, which is defined as an ogiagasegment or one level
below an operating segment, referred to as a coemdne. a business for which discrete financifdimation is available and regularly
reviewed by component managers). The Company diyteas five components which it evaluates for aggtion.

The Company evaluates the distribution methodsssalx, and operating results of each of its coreptsto determine if these
characteristics have or will be sustained ovemng-term basis. For purposes of this evaluationQbmpany would expect its components to
exhibit similar economic characteristics 3-5 yesfter events such as an acquisition within the Gomgjs core roofing business or
management/business restructuring. This evaluatsmconsiders major storm activity or local ecoiwahallenges that may impact the st
term operations of an individual component. Compsiéhat exhibit similar economic characteristies subsequently aggregated into a
single reporting unit.

Based on the Company’s evaluation at August 3142@dwas determined that all of the Compangbmponents exhibited simi
economic characteristics and therefore were agtgdgato a single reporting unit (collectively tiReporting Unit”).

We concluded that the fair value of the Reportingtias more likely than not exceeded its respeatarrying value at the goodwill
measurement date. This position is consistent thi#2014 operating results in which sales for thpdrting Unit exceeded those in the prior
year by 3.8%. The Company noted that gross prdicompared to prior year, decreased by 0.7%; henvas compared to 2012, gross pr
has increased 5.3%. The decrease in the grossmraflgicts what we believe to be short term prigingssures experienced by the Company.
We expect the Reporting Unit to experience modeagedeth in the near future . Our analysis furtheted the total market capitalization
exceeded the Compamytarrying value by approximately 73% at AugustZ114. This compares to 140% and 107% for that sapeesure
August 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. In addjtiea did not identify any macroeconomic or industopditions or cost related factors that
would indicate the fair value of the Reporting Umés more likely than not to be less than its repe carrying value.

Lastly, there have been no events or circumstasioes the date of the above assessments that woaidje the Company’s
conclusion. If circumstances change or events orcimdicate it is more likely than not that thér fealue of the Reporting Unit (under the
guidelines discussed above) has fallen below ityicey values, the Company would test such Repgitinit for impairment.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for employee and non-empldiyeetor stockbased compensation using the fair value methodagunting
Compensation cost arising from stock options astticted stock awards granted to employees andcenguieyee directors is recognized
using the straight-line method over the vestingqakbmwhich represents the requisite service orgrarénce period. In calculating the expense
related to stock-based compensation, the Compdimyages option forfeitures and projects the nundfeestricted shares and units that are
expected to vest based on the related performaresures .

The Company recorded stock-based compensation ss@éi$7.4 million ($4.5 million, net of tax) or $® per basic share and per
diluted share in 2014, $9.3 million ($5.6 milliargt of tax) or $0.11 per basic share and per dilstere in 2013, and $7.9 million
($4.8 million net of tax) or $0.10 per basic shanel per diluted share in 2012. At September 30420 Company had $24.0 million of
excess tax benefits available for potential detetasx write-offs related to previously recognizéac&-based compensation.
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BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2014
(dollars in thousands, except per share data or agherwise indicated)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) stexiof the following:

September 3C September 3C

2014 2013
Foreign currency translation adjustment, $ (5,290 $ 1,88¢
Unrealized loss on financial derivativ (2,130 (3,737
Tax effect 841 1,47¢
Unrealized loss on financial derivatives, net (1,289 (2,26))
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) gain $ (6,579 $ (376

Net Income per Share

Basic net income per common share is computed\bglidg net income by the weighted average numbeoaimon shares
outstanding. Diluted net income per common shacemsputed by dividing net income by the weightedrage number of common shares
and dilutive common share equivalents then outétgnasing the treasury stock method. Common eqeitathares consist of the increme
common shares issuable upon the exercise of sygans.

The following table reflects the calculation of gikied average shares outstanding for each perasdpred:

Year Ended September 30,

2014 2013 2012
Weightec-average common shares outstanding for k 49,227,46 48,472,24 46,718,94
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock option award 605,48 814,80: 1,034,37:
Restricted share awards 114,74t 98,29 87,64¢
Weighted-average shares assuming dilution 49,947,69 49,385,33 47,840,96

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments consist mainly of cash arshaquivalents, accounts receivable, accounts pgyadrrowings under the
Company’s revolving lines of credit, equipment fioang facilities, financial derivatives and long+tedebt. Except for the financial
derivatives and long-term debt, these instrumemgshort-term in nature and their carrying amoapisroximate their fair value. With respect
to the long-term debt, we believe that the faiueal of these obligations, including current maiesjtapproximate their carrying values based
on their effective interest rates compared to cumearket rates. See Note 16 for disclosures o€thmpany’s financial derivatives that are
recorded at fair value.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using thditiamethod, which requires it to recognize aremt tax liability or asset for
current taxes payable or refundable and a deféaseliability or asset for the estimated future &dfects of temporary differences between
financial statement and tax reporting bases oftassal liabilities to the extent that they areimadile. Deferred tax expense (benefit) results
from the net change in deferred tax assets aniiitied during the year.

FASB ASC Topic 740 prescribes a recognition thré&shad measurement attribute for the financiakstent recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expectée tiaken in a tax return. Based on this guidameeCompany analyzes its filing positions
in all of the federal and state jurisdictions whi¢iis required to file income tax returns, as vaalall open tax years in these jurisdictions. Tax
benefits from uncertain tax positions are recoghifé is more likely than not that the positissustainable based solely on its technical
merits.
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BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2014
(dollars in thousands, except per share data or agherwise indicated)

Foreign Currency Translation

The assets and liabilities of the Company’s Camadjzerations are translated into United Stateso®o#t current exchange rates as
of the balance sheet date, and revenues and expamestranslated at average monthly exchange Mé¢sinrealized translation gains or
losses associated with the Canadian net assetscaneled directly to a separate component of stadins’ equity. Realized gains and losses
from foreign currency transactions were not matéoiaany of the periods presented. The Companyifitas-company receivables from the
Company’s Canadian subsidiary, for which the skenta portion is marked to market each period wittoaesponding entry recorded as a
component of the consolidated statement of opersitiBince repayment of the long-term portion isplahned or anticipated in the
foreseeable future, the long-term balances are edatkmarket each period with a corresponding eettgrded as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@q&ASB) issued Accounting Standards Update 208,4R@venue from
Contracts with Customers (“ASU 2014-09"), which stgedes the revenue recognition requirements in @8 “Revenue Recognition”.
ASU 201409 clarifies the principles for recognizing reveraunel to develop a common revenue standard for Ga#dPInternational Financi
Reporting Standards. The core principle of thisatpd guidance is that an entity should recognizemee to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount tflatte the consideration to which the entity expdotbe entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. The new rule also requires iadditdisclosure about the nature, amount, timimdj @ncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from customer contracts, including sigrfit judgments and changes in judgments and asssignized from costs incurred to obtain
or fulfill a contract. This guidance is effectiverfannual reporting periods beginning after Decamibe 2016, including interim reporting
periods therein, which is effective for the Compameginning October 1, 2017, the first day of thenpany’s 2018 fiscal year. The Company
is currently evaluating the impact of this accongtjuidance and does not expect any significanagnpn its consolidated financial
statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Stanslafpdate 2014-15, Presentation of Financial StatésneGoing Concern
(Subtopic 205-40): Disclosures of Uncertaintiesidlan Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Comt¢‘ASU 2014-15"). ASU 2014-15
requires management to evaluate whether thereoaditions or events that raise substantial doubtiathe entity’s ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date thaffinancial statements are issued or are avaitalle issued. This ASU also requires
management to disclose certain information depegndimthe results of the going concern evaluatidre provisions of this ASU are effective
for annual periods ending after December 15, 2Dt ding interim reporting periods therein, whisheffective for the Company beginning
October 1, 2017, the first day of the Company’s®fidcal year. The Company is currently evaluatimgimpact of this accounting guidance
and does not expect any significant impact ondtssolidated financial statements.

3. Goodwill, Intangibles and Other Assets
Goodwill was $466,206 and $469,203 at Septembe2@D4 and 2013, respectively. Goodwill decreasefi)997 in 2014,

reflecting a loss from foreign currency translatiafter increases of $27,835 due to acquisitiomsaagain from foreign currency translatior
$1,793 in 2013.
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Intangibles and other assets, included in otheg-kenm assets, consisted of the following:

September 3C September 3C

2014 2013

Amortizable intangible assel
Non-compete agreemer $ 2,82¢ $ 3,552
Customer relationshiy 162,59¢ 163,38:
Beneficial lease arrangements 61C 63€
166,03: 167,57:
Less: accumulated amortization (101,72) (88,62))
64,30¢ 78,95(

Amortizable other asset

Deferred financing cos 5,55( 5,81(
Less: accumulated amortization (3,056 (2,109
2,49¢ 3,70¢
Unamortizable trademarl 9,75( 9,75(
Other assets 4,237 4,34%
Total other assets, net $ 80,787 $ 96,75

Amortization expense related to intangible assetsumted to approximately $14,089, $15,087, and2®i8 2014, 2013, and 2012,
respectively. The intangible lives range from améifteen years and the weighted average remailifiagvas 12.1 years at September 30,
2014.

Estimated future annual amortization for the ahiot@ngible assets as of September 30, 2014 islasvf

Future

Year ending September 2 Amortization
2015 $ 11,717
2016 9,76:
2017 8,06¢
2018 6,801
2019 5,54¢
Thereafter 22,417

Total future amortization $ 64,30¢

4. Acquisitions

On August 29, 2014, the Company purchased cersaieta of All Weather Products Ltd. of Vancouver\/R"), a distributor of
residential and commercial roofing products wittethlocations in the western province of BritisHu@abia, Canada. The Company recorded
no goodwill in connection with this acquisition.

In 2013, the Company acquired 19 branches fronthitez following acquisitions at a total cost of $b#illion, with resulting
goodwill of $27.8 million:

« On December 28, 2012, the Company purchased cexdagts of Ford Wholesale Co. of San Jose (“Fordl&ghle”) and
Construction Materials Supply (“CMS”), distributas§ residential and commercial roofing productswatcombined five
locations in Northern California and recent anrssés prior to the acquisition were approximaté9 hillion.

« On November 1, 2012, the Company purchased th& sfddcClure-Johnston Company (“McClure-Johnstor’gistributor
of residential and commercial roofing products exldted accessories headquartered in the Pittsisutmirb of Braddock,
Pennsylvania. McClure-Johnston has 14 locationis eight in Pennsylvania, three in West Virginiagam Western Maryland
and two in Georgia. Recent annual sales prioreéatyuisition were approximately $85 millic

53




BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2014
(dollars in thousands, except per share data or agherwise indicated)

In connection with the above acquisitions, the Camypincurred legal fees of approximately $0.1 milland $0.7 million that were
included in operating expenses in 2014 and 20Epgeatively. The total aggregate impact of the alamepuisitions on the 2014 and 2013
operating results was not considered materialferéporting of pro forma financial information.

A total of $3.2 million of the acquisition pricesrfthe above acquisitions remained in escrow ateBaper 30, 2014, primarily for
purchase price adjustments and post-closing ind@ation claims, with $0.2 million included in otheurrent assets and accrued expenses
and $3.0 million included in other long-term assatd liabilities.

5. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
The significant components of prepaid expenses#mer current assets were as follows:

September 3C September 3C

2014 2013
Vendor rebate $ 58,36: $ 49 48"
Other 8,46¢ 12,93

$ 66,82¢ $ 62,42:

6. Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment, net, consisted of theaiig:

September 3C September 3C

2014 2013

Land $ 3,30C $ 3,30¢
Buildings and leasehold improveme 28,14¢ 27,06"
Equipment 178,12: 149,17¢
Furniture and fixtures 15,60¢ 14,33¢
225,17 193,89:

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (136,617 (126,23))
$ 88,56¢ $ 67,65¢

Depreciation and amortization of property and emapt totaled $16,205, $16,410, and $14,524 in 2P043 and 2012,
respectively.

7. Accrued Expenses

The significant components of accrued expenses agefellows:

September 3C September 3C

2014 2013
Uninvoiced inventory receip $ 23,74¢ $ 12,06:
Employecrelated accrual 24,46 22,99
Other 32,07¢ 33,24
$ 80,28¢ $ 68,29¢
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8. Financing Arrangements
Financing arrangements consisted of the following:

September 30 September 30

2014 2013
Senior Secured Credit Facility
Revolving Lines of Credil
Canadian revolver-expires March 31, 2017 (effectate on borrowings 4.00% at Septem
30, 2014 and 3.75% at September 30, 2! $ 10,71 $ 2,42¢
U.S. Revolver-expires March 31, 2017 (effectiverah borrowings of 4.25% at Septemb
30, 2014 and 1.93% at September 30, 2! 7,80( 45,00(
Term Loan:
Term Loan-matures March 31, 2017 (2.15% at Septe8M®e2014 and 1.93% on Septemt
30, 2013) 196,87! 208,12!
Total borrowings under Senior Secured Credit Rt 215,38¢ 255,55!
Less: current portion (29,76 (58,67¢)
Total long-term portion of borrowings under Serfi@cured Credit Facility $ 185,62! $ 196,87
Equipment Financing Facilities
Borrowings under various equipment financing féieifi-various maturities through
September 2021 (various fixed interest rates ranfyjom 2.33% to 4.60% at September
2014, and 2.51% to 6.75% at September 30, 2 $ 30,96¢ $ 10,591
Less: current portion (5,352) (3,849
Total long-term portion of borrowings under equiprnhfnancing facilities $ 25,61: $ 6,74¢

Senior Secured Credit Facility

On April 5, 2012, the Company replaced its priadit facility with a new five-year senior securaddit facility that includes a $550
million United States credit facility (individuallghe “U.S. Credit Facility”) and a C$15 millionX3.4 million at September 30, 2014)
Canadian credit facility (individually, the “Canati Revolver”) with Wells Fargo Bank, National Asgdion, and a syndicate of other lenders
(combined, the “Credit Facility”). The Company paidl debt of $304.0 million that was outstandinglanthe prior credit facility with the
proceeds from the Credit Facility and from apprcedety $79 million of cash on hand. In the third qeaof 2012, the Company recorded a
charge of approximately $1.2 million ($0.7 milliamet of tax), included in interest expense, finagaiosts and other associated with this
transaction. In addition, this transaction impadtedleffectiveness of the Company’s interest rat@ps existing as of the refinancing date as
discussed in Note 16.

The $550 million U.S Credit Facility consists ofevolving credit facility of $325 million (the “U.SRevolver”), which includes a
sub-facility of $20 million for letters of credignd a $225 million term loan (the “Term Loan”). Therm Loan has required amortization of
5% per year that is payable in quarterly installteewith the balance due on March 31, 2017. The @y may increase the Credit Facility
by up to $200 million under certain conditions. fédhevas $7.8 million, C$12.0 million ($10.7 millioahd $196.9 million outstanding under
the U.S. Revolver, Canadian Revolver and Term Losspectively, at September 30, 2014. There werk@dlion of outstanding standby
letters of credit at September 30, 2014.

Interest

The Credit Facility provides for borrowings undee tCompany’s U.S. Revolver and Canadian RevolvarBdse Rate. The Base
Rate for borrowings under the U.S. Revolver isrkdias the higher of the Prime Rate, or the Fefferradls Rate plus 0.50%, plus a margin
above that rate. For borrowings made under the diandevolver, the Base Rate is defined as theehighthe Canadian Prime Rate, or the
annual rate of interest equal to the sum of the BD&e plus 1.00%, plus a margin above that rate.rfiargin for both base rates is currently
1.00% per annum and can range from 0.50% to 1.58%mum depending upon the Company’s Consolidedéal Leverage Ratio, as
defined in the Credit Facility.
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Additionally, for Base Rate borrowings made undher t).S. Revolver, the Company may elect an optionetest rate equal to the
one (1), two (2), three (3), or six (6) month LIB@&e, plus a margin above that rate. In connedatidm this election, the Company is also
required to elect an interest period that corredpamith the underlying LIBOR rate that was elecfBoe margin is currently 2.00% per ann
and can range from 1.50% to 2.50% per annum depegnugtion the Company’s Consolidated Total LeveragtioRas defined in the Credit
Facility.

Current unused commitment fees on the revolvinditfacilities are 0.45% per annum. The unused cdment fees can range from
0.35% to 0.50% per annum, again depending upo@timepany’s Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio.

As of September 30, 2014, outstanding borrowingkeuthe U.S. Revolver carried an interest rate leigpuhe United States Prime
rate, plus 1.00% (4.25% at September 30, 2014)evehitstanding borrowings under the Canadian Revatarried an interest rate equal to
the Canadian Prime rate, plus 1.00% (4.00% at 8#pte30, 2014). Borrowings under the Term Loaniedran interest rate equal to the
LIBOR rate, plus 2.00% (2.15% at September 30, p014

Financial covenants under the Credit Facility aréodlows:
Maximum Consolidated Total Leverage R:

On the last day of each fiscal quarter, the Comisa@gnsolidated Total Leverage Ratio (the rati@affstanding debt to trailing
twelve-month earnings before interest, income tagtepreciation, amortization and stock-based cosgt@n), as more fully defined in the
Credit Facility, must not be greater than 3.50:2r04.00:1.0 under a one-time request by the Compahsequent to an acquisition that meets
the requirements under the Credit Facility. At 8egter 30, 2014, this ratio was 1.88:1.

Minimum Consolidated Interest Coverage Ri

On the last day of each fiscal quarter, the Comjsa@gnsolidated Interest Coverage Ratio (the ratiailing twelve-month
earnings before interest, income taxes, depreoiggimortization and stock-based compensation to icdsrest expense for the same period),
as more fully defined in the Credit Facility, mustt be less than 3.00:1.0. At September 30, 2@ ratio was 14.79:1.

As of September 30, 2014, the Company was in campd with these covenants.

Substantially all of the Company’s assets, inclgdime capital stock and assets of wholly-owned iglidrges, secure obligations
under the Credit Facility.

Equipment Financing Facilities

As of September 30, 2014, there was a total of@81llion outstanding under equipment financingilfaes, with fixed interest rate
ranging from 2.33% to 4.60% and payments due thr@aptember 2021. The Company’s current faciligvjstes for up to $30 million of
purchased equipment through October 1, 2014. Thkcaple interest rate at the time of the advanagdde approximately 1.26% above the
3-year term swap rate for 5-year loans and 1.218v@the 4-year term swap rate for 7-year loansfukber amounts can be drawn on prior
facilities.
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Other Information

Annual principal payments for all outstanding bavings for each of the next five years and thereafteof September 30, 2014 w
as follows:

Senior
Secured Revolving
Credit Equipment Lines of
Fiscal year Facility Financing Credit Total
2015 $ 11,25 $ 5352 $ 18,551« $  35,11¢
2016 11,25( 5,08¢ - 16,33«
2017 174,37! 4,98¢ - 179,36¢
2018 - 4,23¢ - 4,23¢
2019 - 4,352 - 4,352
Thereafter - 6,95( - 6,95(
Subtotal 196,87! 30,96¢ 18,51« 246,35!
Less current portion 11,25( 5,352 18,51« 35,11¢
Total long-term debt $ 18562! $ 2561« $ - $ 211,23¢

9. Leases

The Company mostly operates in leased facilitidgckvare accounted for as operating leases. Tlseddgpically provide for a base
rent plus real estate taxes. Certain of the lepisrgde for escalating rents over the lives ofl#eses and rent expense is recognized over the
terms of those leases on a straight-line basis.

At September 30, 2014, the minimum rental commitmender all non-cancelable operating leases wittal or remaining terms of
more than one year were as follows:

Operating

Year ending September 2 Leases
2015 $ 34,07(
2016 29,48
2017 22,84«
2018 15,74¢
2019 11,09(
Thereafter 19,16:
Total minimum lease payments $ 132,39

Rent expense was $34,854 in 2014, $32,736 in 20uB8$28,860 in 2012. Sublet income was immateoiaiHese years.
10. Stock Options and Restricted Stock Awards

On February 12, 2014, the shareholders of the Coyngpproved the Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. 20btISPlan (the “2014
Plan™). The 2014 Plan provides for discretionanaeig of stock options, stock, stock units and sagkreciation rights (“SARs”) for up to
5,100,000 shares of common stock to selected erretogind non-employee directors. As of Septembe2(B0L, there were 4,346,485 shares
of common stock available for awards under the 2Bia, subject to increase for shares that areifed or expire, or are used for tax
withholding on stock awards or stock unit awardsjar the 2004 (defined below) and the 2014 Plan.

Prior to the 2014 Plan, the Company maintainedathended and restated Beacon Roofing Supply, It} 3ock Plan (the “2004

Plan™). Upon shareholder approval of the 2014 Rfam Company ceased issuing equity awards frorprexisting 2004 Plan and all future
equity awards will be issued from the 2014 Plan.
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The Company recognizes the cost of employee sarvéredered in exchange for awards of equity instntsibased on the fair value
of those awards at the date of the grant. Compiensaxpense for time-based equity awards is rezeghion a straight-line basis, net of
forfeitures, over the requisite service periodtfer fair value of the awards that actually vestm@ensation expense for performance-based
equity awards is recognized, net of forfeituresphgjecting the number of restricted units thatexpected to vest based on the achievement
of the underlying related performance measures.

In 2014, the Company recorded an adjustment of $@llibn during the third quarter and an additiofal2 million during the fourth
quarter to reverse stock-based compensation expeoseled in the current and prior periods for fesly issued performance-based equity
awards. In accordance with the provisions of the42Blan, the Company has adjusted the projectiothéonumber of restricted units that are
expected to vest based on the achievement of iherlying related performance measures. Inclusivih@fforementioned adjustment in
2014, the Company recorded stock-based compensati@nse for award grants of $7.4 million for tlearyended September 30, 2014, and
$9.3 million and $7.9 million for the years endezgpmber 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Stock Options

As of September 30, 2014, there were a total 32AL1 options outstanding, 1,393,007 of whichexercisable, at a weighted-
average exercise price of $17.85. Non-qualifiedomstgenerally expire 10 years after the grant datk except under certain conditions, the
options are subject to continued employment antlimeme-third increments over a three-year pefididwing the grant dates. As of
September 30, 2014, there was $8.0 million of toteecognized compensation cost, net of estimadeifures, related to unvested stock
option which is expected to be recognized over ighted-average period of 1.68 years.

The fair values of the options were estimated endates of grants using the Black-Scholes optigcing model with the followin
weighted-average assumptions:

Year ended September 3(C

2014 2013 2012
Risk-free interest rat 1.7¢% 0.6(% 0.94%
Expected volatility 44.0(% 43.8(% 47.0(%
Expected life in year 6.C 5.7 6.5

Dividend yield - - -
Expected lives of the options granted are basedgily on historical activity, while expected valaies are based on historical
volatilities of the Company'’s stock and considematbf comparable public companies’ stock. Estim#befkiture rates vary by grant and
range up to 8.0% as of September 30, 2014.

In the event of a change in control of the Compafiygutstanding options are immediately vested.
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Information regarding the Company’s stock optissimmarized below:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Life Value
(in years) (in millions)

Outstanding at September 30, 2( 3,895,58. $ 15.0¢

Grantec 789,33. 18.7¢

Exercisec (1,508,54) 14.2¢

Canceled (109,29) 16.6t
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 3,067,081 $ 16.3¢

Grantec 691,08t 30.6¢

Exercisec (1,189,017 16.1:

Canceled (64,550 22.6¢
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 2,504,600 $ 20.2¢

Grantec 421,91¢ 36.2(

Exercisec (430,310 18.1¢

Canceled (132,009 30.07
Outstanding at September 30, 2014 2,364,221 $ 22.9¢ 64 $ 12.¢
Vested or Expected to Vest at September 30, 2014 2,319,090 $ 22.9( 64 $ 12.¢
Exercisable at September 30, 2014 1,393,000 $ 17.8¢ 51 $ 11k

The total fair value of options vested was $6.7iaril $5.8 million, and $5.1 million during 2014023, and 2012, respectively. The

total intrinsic value of stock options exercisedidg 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $7.9 million, $22.0iom and $17.1 million, respectively.
Intrinsic values are before applicable income ta@$represent the amount by which the market vafittee underlying stock exceeded the
exercise price of outstanding options on the lasiress day of the period indicated. The weightextagge grant date fair value of options

granted during 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $15.97481&hd $8.78, respectively.

Restricted Stock Awart

As of September 30, 2014, there was $4.8 milliotot#l unrecognized compensation cost, net of egéthforfeitures, related to
unvested restricted stock awards which are expéotbd recognized over a weighted-average peri@3f years.

The total fair values of the restricted stock avgasere determined based upon the number of shatests and the closing prices of
the Company’s common stock on the dates of thetgirahe restricted stock awards granted to manageane subject to continued
employment, except under certain conditions, anlbdwest if the Company attains a targeted ratestiinn on invested capital at the end of a
three-year period. The actual number of sharesits that will vest can range from 0% to 125% af thanagement grants depending upon
actual Company performance below or above the téggel and the Company estimates that performandetermining the projected
number of shares or units that will vest and thateel compensation cost. The restricted stock essvgwanted to non-employee directors are
also subject to continued service, vest at theofmmhe year (except under certain conditions) &edunderlying common shares will not be
distributed until six months after the director @egtes from the Company. Beginning in 2014, thevsixth period was eliminated and shares
will be delivered within ten days after terminatiohservice on the board. In November 2013, the @amy has also issued restricted stock
awards that are subject to continued employmenwalhgtest over three to five years.
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Information regarding the Company’s restricted shand units is summarized below:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number of Grant Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Life Value
(in years) (in millions)

Outstanding at September 30, 2( 135,00¢ $ 16.7C

Grantec 148,10( 20.2¢

Lapse of restrictions/conversio (4,496 20.0z2

Canceled - -
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 278,610 $ 18.5¢

Grantec 138,29: 31.9(C

Lapse of restrictions/conversio (42,465 18.47

Canceled (3,26¢) 21.8t
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 371,17: $ 23.52

Grantec 258,67: 35.7¢

Lapse of restrictions/conversio (63,847) 19.0¢

Canceled (83,929 23.8¢
Outstanding at September 30, 2014 482,07t $ 31.2¢ 17 $ 12.2
Vested or Expected to Vest at September 30, 2014 296,87 $ 30.5: 1¢ $ 7.€

The total fair value of RSUs vested was $1.2 milli$0.8 million and $0.1 million during 2014, 20E8d 2012, respectively.

11. Benefit Plans

The Company maintains defined contribution plangecdng all fulltime employees of the Company who have 90 daysrefce anc
are at least 21 years old. An eligible employee mlagt to make a before-tax contribution of betw&&nand 100% of his or her
compensation through payroll deductions, not teeedche annual limit set by law. The Company culyenatches the first 50% of
participant contributions limited to 6% of a paip@nt’'s gross compensation (maximum Company mat&4). Furthermore, in accordance
with the plans, the Company may elect to make amdit contributions to eligible employees as péw discretionary profit-sharing. The
Company has elected to do so during each of tlee thears presented and are scheduled to makerduatiah for 2014 during the 2015 fisc
year. All Company contributions are subject todiezretion of management and the board of direciidie combined total expense for t
plan and a similar plan for Canadian employees$6a303, $4,921, and $7,094 in 2014, 2013 and 2@&pectively.

The Company also contributes to an external perfsiot for certain of its employees who belong toaal union. Annual
contributions were $136, $133, and $125 in 201432@nd 2012, respectively.
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12. Income Taxes
The income tax provision consisted of the following

Year ended September 3(

2014 2013 2012
Current:

Federa $ 25,98t $ 34,36 $ 34,07(
Foreign 1,38: 1,89t 86(
State 4,47: 8,192 8,30¢
31,84« 44,45 43,23¢

Deferred:
Federa 2,321 3,85k 6,16¢
Foreign (64¢) (493 471
State 1,39¢ 1,054 1,06:
3,07¢ 4.41¢ 7,70(

$ 34,92 $ 48,867 $ 50,93¢

The following table shows the principal reasonstfer differences between the effective income &e and the statutory federal
income tax rate:

Year ended September 30,

2014 2013 2012
Federal income taxes at statutory 1 35.0% 35.0(% 35.0(%
State income taxes, net of federal ber 4.24 4.9t 4.84
Other 0.1C 0.2¢ 0.42
Total 39.3%% 40.2% 40.2t%
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Deferred income taxes reflect the tax consequenicesnporary differences between the amounts atasad liabilities for financii
reporting purposes and such amounts as measurtast lywv. These temporary differences are determiedrding to ASC 740 Income
Taxes. Temporary differences that give rise to metetax assets and liabilities are as followslfwusands):

September 30 September 30

2014 2013
Deferred tax liabilities
Excess tax over book depreciation and amortiz: $ (72,670 $ (68,69%)
Other (527) (615)
(73,19) (69,310
Deferred tax asset
Deferred compensatic 9,09¢ 8,30¢
Allowance for doubtful accoun 2,95¢ 3,692
Accrued vacation & othe 3,19¢ 4,26¢
Unrealized loss on financial derivativ 758 1,467
Inventory valuation 7,70¢ 5,16¢
23,70’ 22,89¢
Net deferred income tax liabilit $ (49,490 $ (46,417
Net deferred income tax asset (liabili- Current $ 14,61C $ 14,591
Net deferred income tax asset (liabili- Non-current $ (64,100 $ (61,009

The Company’s Canadian subsidiary, Beacon Roofiqgply Canada Company (“BRSCC"), is treated as ati©thad Foreign
Corporation (“CFC"). Prior to October 1, 2009, BRS@as treated as a “pass-through” or disregardgty éor United States federal income
tax purposes. BRSCC's taxable income, which reflafitof the Company’s Canadian operations, isdptamed only in Canada and would
generally be taxed in the United States only upoaaual or deemed distribution. The Company expibett BRSCC's earnings will be
indefinitely reinvested for the foreseeable futanel therefore no United States deferred tax asdithility for the differences between the
book basis and the tax basis of BRSCC has beendetat September 30, 2014. Unremitted earnin865 million were considered
permanently reinvested at September 30, 2014.i®athount, $22.4 million of the unremitted earnimgse previously taxed in the United
States and the remittance on these earnings wotllgemerate additional United States tax.

As of September 30, 2014, there was $82 of uncetdai positions which, if recognized, would affdet Company’s effective tax
rate. The Company’s continuing practice is to r@ing any interest and penalties related to incarertatters in income tax expense in the
consolidated statements of operations. A recoticitizof the beginning and ending amounts of thesgimrecognized income tax benefits is
as follows:

Year Ended September 30

2014 2013
Balance, beginning of ye $ 364 $ 164
Current year uncertain tax positic - 20C
Settlements (282 -
Balance, end of year $ 82 $ 364
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The Company has operations in 42 states in theei8tates and six provinces in Canada and is subjéax audits in each of these
jurisdictions and federally in both the United $&and Canada. These audits may involve complegsssvhich may require an extenc
period of time to resolve. The Company has provideds estimate of taxes payable in the accomipanfinancial statements. Additional
taxes are reasonably possible; however, the amoantst be estimated at this time. The Companyp iemger subject to United States
federal tax examinations for fiscal years prioR@11. For the majority of states, the Companyss al longer subject to tax examinations for
fiscal years before 2011. In Canada, the Company isnger subject to tax examinations for fisadns prior to 2009. For the Canadian
provinces, the Company is no longer subject teetaminations for fiscal years before 2011.

13. Contingencies

The Company is subject to loss contingencies puatdoavarious federal, state and local environmdates and regulations;
however, the Company is not aware of any reasoradsgible losses that would have a material impadts results of operations, financial
position, or liquidity. Potential loss contingersiaclude possible obligations to remove or miggte effects on the environment of the
placement, storage, disposal or release of cecte@mical or other substances by the Company oth®r parties. In connection with its
acquisitions, the Company has been indemnifieduhgrand all known environmental liabilities as lné tespective dates of acquisition.
Historically, environmental liabilities have notcha material impact on the Company’s results ofafens, financial position or liquidity.

The Company is subject to litigation from time itoe in the ordinary course of business; howeveGbmpany does not expect the
results, if any, to have a material adverse impadts results of operations, financial positiofiguidity.

14. Geographic and Product Data
The Company’s geographic and product informatios a&follows:

Year Ended September 30

2014 2013 2012
Property Property Property

Income and Income and Income and
Net before Equipment, Net before Equipment, Net before Equipment,

Revenues taxes net Revenues taxes net Revenues taxes net
U.S. $ 2,146,350 $ 86,87t $ 78,60¢ $ 2,064,213 $ 116,850 $ 58,39¢ $ 1,873,558 $ 122,83t $ 49,78
Canada 180,54¢ 1,89: 9,95¢ 176,58¢ 4,621 9,26( 170,07« 3,66 7,594
Total $ 2,326,900 $ 88,76¢ $ 88,56F $ 2,240,720 $ 12147- $ 67,65¢ $ 2,043,665 $ 126,49¢ $ 57,37¢

Net revenues from external customers by produaimgweere as follows:

Year Ended September 30

2014 2013 2012
Residential roofing produc $ 1,108,511 $ 1,100,50: $ 1,023,54
Non-residential roofing produc 876,03: 822,72t 757,90t
Complementary building products 342,35 317,48¢ 262,20}
Total $ 2,326,900 $ 2,240,72. $ 2,043,65

Prior year revenues by product group are preseéntadnanner consistent with the current year’s pebdlassifications.
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BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2014
(dollars in thousands, except per share data or agherwise indicated)

15. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The activity in the allowance for doubtful accouatssisted of the following:

Balance at

beginning Provision Balance at
Fiscal Year of year Additions Write-offs end of year
September 30, 201 $ 9,832 $ 2392 $ 3,716 $ 8,51(
September 30, 201 $ 13,46: $ 36 $ (4,000 $ 9,83
September 30, 201 $ 13,81¢ $ 4,61¢ $ 4,97) $ 13,46¢

16. Financial Derivatives

Market risk represents the possibility that theueadf the derivative instrument will change. Inegiing relationship, the change in
the value of the derivative is offset to a greaeakby the change in the value of the underlyiadded item. Credit risk related to derivatives
represents the possibility that the counterpartyrit fulfill the terms of the contract. The natial, or contractual, amount of derivative
financial instrument is used to measure interebetpaid or received and does not represent thep@ays exposure due to credit risk. The
Company’s current derivative instruments are watigé financial counterparties rated highly by nadity recognized credit rating agencies.

The Company uses interest rate derivative instrgsenmanage the risk related to fluctuating cémhd from interest rate changes
by converting a portion of its variable-rate bormogs into fixed-rate borrowings. On March 28, 204@, entered into an interest rate swap
agreement with a notional amount of $213.8 millidrich expires on March 31, 2017. This agreemenpsviae thirty-day LIBOR to a fixed-
rate of 1.38%. The instrument has scheduled reshebf the notional amount equal to $2.8 million gearter, effectively matching the
repayment schedule under the Term Loan. As of &dme 30, 2014, the interest rate swap has a nd@onaunt of $196.9 million.

For derivative instruments designated as cash liledges, the Company records the effective portibebanges in their fair value,
net of taxes, in other comprehensive income. Tfect¥eness of the hedges is periodically asselsgd¢dde Company during the lives of the
hedges by 1) comparing the current terms of thgéswith the related hedged debt to assure theynoento coincide and 2) through an
evaluation of the ability of the counterpartieghte hedges to honor their obligations under theyesdAny ineffective portions of the hedges
are recognized in earnings through interest expdimsancing costs and other. The Company’s refimantransaction in 2012 resulted in
hedge ineffectiveness on three derivative instrumtirat expired in April 2013, as the underlyingrtedebt being hedged was repaid before
the expiration of the derivative instruments. Tiasulted in a $4.9 million charge to interest exgeggifinancing costs and other in the third
quarter of 2012 for the fair value of the derivatimstruments previously recorded as a componetwmprehensive loss. Subsequent change:s
in the fair value of those swaps are also beinggsized in interest expense, financing costs ahdrot

The Company records any differences paid or redeiveits interest rate hedges as adjustmentsecesitexpense, financing costs
and other. The table below presents the combinegdhies of the interest rate derivative instrutsen

Unrealized Losses

Location on September 30 September 30 Fair Value
Instrument Balance Shee 2014 2013 Hierarchy
Designated interest rate swaps (effect Accrued expense  $ 2,12¢ % 3,731 Level 2

The fair value of the interest rate hedge was detexd through the use of a pricing model, whickiag$ verifiable inputs such as
market interest rates that are observable at cortyngoioted intervals (generally referred to as thlBOR Curve”) for the full terms of the
hedge agreements. These values reflect a Leveb®urement under the applicable fair value hierarchy
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2014
(dollars in thousands, except per share data or agherwise indicated)

The table below presents the amounts of gain (losshhe interest rate derivative instrument recoghiin other comprehens
income (OCI):

2014 2013 2012

Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in OCI (net of tax
Designated interest rate swe $ 97z $ 1,39¢ $ (3,660
Non-designated interest rate swaps (reclassified froeoraulated OCI - - 2,98¢

The table below presents the amounts of gain (lmsshe interest rate derivative instruments recagghin interest expense,
financing costs and other:

2014 2013 2012
Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Interest Expers Financing Costs and
Other
Non-designated interest rate swe $ - $ 7% 2,311
Non-designated interest rate swaps (reclassifiga ficcumulated OCI) - - (4,937)
$ - $ 7 $ (2,627

17. Subsequent Events

In October 2014, the Company acquired six branéioes the following two acquisitions for a combinpdrchase price of $69.8
million.

« On October 1, 2014, the Company purchased cersataof Applicators Sales & Service (“Applicat)rst distributor of
residential and commercial roofing products withrfocations in Maine and one location in New Hahisand annual sales
of approximately $48 million

« On October 15, 2014, the Company purchased cassiets of Wholesale Roofing Supply (“WRSt)istributor of residentis
roofing products with a nit-acre facility located in Grand Prairie, Texas andual sales of approximately $34 millic

The Company recorded the acquired assets andtied#t their estimated fair values at the actjoisidate. The Company is in

process of finalizing all fair value and purchaseaunting adjustments. Results of operations ftin Bgplicators and WRS will be included
in the Company’s consolidated financial stateméwois the date of acquisition.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

1. Disclosure Controls and Procedure

Our management, with the participation of our cleeécutive officer and chief financial officer, éwated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as definediiedR1l3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securitiebdhge Act of 1934) as of September
30, 2014. Based on this evaluation, our chief etheewfficer and chief financial officer concludéuht, as of September 30, 2014, our
disclosure controls and procedures were (1) dedigmensure that material information relating taBon Roofing Supply, Inc., including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to owfaecutive officer and chief financial officer byhers within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report was beinggared and (2) designed to be effective, and wiézetize, in that they provide reasonable
assurance of achieving their objectives, includmag information required to be disclosed by uthmreports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is (a) recorded, processed, summaaizédeported within the time periods specifiethe SEC’s rules and forms and (b)
accumulated and communicated to management, imgjualir chief executive officer and chief finanadficer, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosures.

2. Internal Control over Financial Reporting
(&) Managemen’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finaha@orting. Internal control
over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13af)®f 15d415(f) promulgated under the Securities ExchangeoAd934 as a process desig
by, or under the supervision of, the company’sqpal executive and principal financial officersdaeffected by the company’s board of
directors, management and other personnel, to ¢ggaeiasonable assurance regarding the reliabflfipancial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes oatance with generally accepted accounting priesipnd includes those policies and
procedures that:

« Pertain to the maintenance of records that in restsle detail accurately and fairly reflect the sactions and dispositions of
the assets of the compai

» Provide reasonable assurance that transactiome@med as necessary to permit preparation ofifiahstatements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iplew; and that receipts and expenditures of thepamy are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of managdnaed directors of the company; @

« Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, osa&isposition of the
compan’s assets that could have a material effect onitlaadial statement

Our internal control system was designed to prové@sonable assurance to our management and Boanectors regarding the
preparation and fair presentation of publishedrfaial statements. All internal control systemsmatter how well designed, have inherent
limitations which may not prevent or detect missta¢nts. Therefore, even those systems determirtezl effective can provide only
reasonable assurance with respect to financiartit preparation and presentation. Projectioasmpfvaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls megoine inadequate because of changes in conditiotisat the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness oftermahcontrols over financial reporting as of @epber 30, 2014. In making this
assessment, we used the criteria set forth inrlat&@ontrol— Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (1992 framework) (COSOxeBeon our assessment, we believe that, as ofr8eete30, 2014, our internal
control over financial reporting is effective aetteasonable assurance level based on thoseariteri
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Our Independent Registered Public Accounting Fiem issued a report on the Company’s internal cbatt@r financial reporting.
This report appears below.

(b) Attestation Report of the Independent Registered Palic Accounting Firm
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.

We have audited Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.’s imakcontrol over financial reporting as of Septeni® 2014, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framdwssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatif the Treadway Commission
(1992 framework) (the COSO criteria). Beacon RapfBupply, Inc.’s management is responsible for taaiing effective internal control
over financial reporting, and for its assessmernhefeffectiveness of internal control over finaheceporting included in the accompanying
Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control dvi@ancial Reporting. Our responsibility is to esgs an opinion on the company’s
internal control over financial reporting basedoam audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d&/nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corax@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etinagutihe design and operating effectiveness ofiiralecontrol based on the assessed risk, anc
performing such other procedures as we consideredssary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainiy reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financékstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and @)ige reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygsats that could have a material effect on thentiizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. maint, in all material respects, effective interratteol over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2014, based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. &epfember 30, 2014 and 2013 and the related ¢dataul statements of operations,
comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity and fasis for each of the three years in the periodeghSeptember 30, 2014 and our report
dated November 25, 2014 expressed an unqualifisdoopthereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLF

McLean, Virginia
November 25, 201
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(c) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repaoting
No change in our internal control over financigloging (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d18(ider the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934) occurred during the fiscal quarter eh&eptember 30, 2014 that has materially affected, reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial repodi
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

We have no information to report pursuant to IteBn 9
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PART IlI

This part of our Form 10-K, which includes Itemstlfough 14, is omitted because we will file detfiré proxy material pursuant to
Regulation 14A not more than 120 days after theectuf our year-end, which proxy material will indéuthe information required by Items 10
through 14 and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 15.

PART IV

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES

(@ (1) Financial Statements

The following financial statements of our Company &eport of the Independent Registered Public Actiog Firm are included
Part Il, Item 8 of this Report:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimg

Consolidated Balance Sheets as September 30, p01204.3

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeraded September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomthéoyears ended September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equitytfieryears ended September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaded September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statement schedules have been omittealibedhey are either not applicable or the requinedmation has been disclosed
in the financial statements or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits

Exhibits are set forth on the attached exhibit inde
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedetien duly authorized.

BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC. (REGISTRAN"

By: /s/ JOSEPH M. NOWICKI

Joseph M. Nowick
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Date: November 25, 201

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
/sl ROBERT R. BUCF Chairman November 25, 2014
Robert R. Bucl
/s/ PAUL M. ISABELLA President and Chief Executive Officer Novenmber2014
Paul M. Isabell:
/s/ JOSEPH M. NOWICK Executive Vice President and Chief Financial €fi November 25, 2014
Joseph M. Nowick
/sl JEANINE MONTGOMERY Chief Accounting Officer November 25, 2014
Jeanine Montgomer
/s/ RICHARD W. FROS" Director November 25, 2014
Richard W. Fros
/s JAMES J. GAFFNE® Director November 25, 2014
James J. Gaffne
/s/ PETER M. GOTSCI Director November 25, 2014
Peter M. Gotscl
/s/ NEIL S. NOVICH Director November 25, 2014
Neil S. Novich
/s/ STUART A. RANDLE Director November 25, 2014

Stuart A. Randle

/s/ WILSON B. SEXTON Director November 25, 2014
Wilson B. Sextor
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit
Number Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date
3.1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incatjmor of 10-K 000-50924 3.1 December 23, 2004
Beacon Roofing Supply, In
3.2 Amended and Restated By-Laws of Beacon Roofing Bupp 8-K 000-50924 3.1 September 24, 2014
Inc.
4.1 Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Beacon S-1/A  333-116027 4.1 August 19, 2004
Roofing Supply, Inc
10.1 Credit Agreement, dated as of April 5, 2012, amBegcon 8-K 000-50924 10 April 5, 2012
Sales Acquisition, Inc. and Beacon Roofing Suppiyn&ta
Corporation, as borrowers, Beacon Roofing Supply., las one
of the Guarantors, the Lenders party thereto, aptls\Wargo
Securities, LLC, as Administrative Age!
10.2 Executive Securities Agreement dated as of Octabe2003 S-1 333-116027 10.5 May 28, 2004
by and between Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc., RoBaedk and
Code, Hennessy & Simmons llI, L.
10.3+ Description of Management Cash Bonus F 10-Q 00C-50924 10 February 8, 201
10.4+ Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. Amended and Restatéd 20 DEF 14A 000-50924 Appendix January 7, 2011
Stock Plar A
10.5+ First Amendment dated as of October 31, 2011 t@Btwercon 10-K 000-50924  10.10 November 29, 2011
Roofing Supply, Inc. 2004 Stock PI
10.6+ Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. 2014 Stock Plan DEF 14A 000-50924 Appendix January 6, 2014
A
10.7+ Form of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. 2014 Stock Plan 8-K 000-50924 10.2 February 13, 2014
Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Non-Enygle
Directors
10.8+ Form of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. 2014 Stock Plan 8-K 000-50924 10.1 September 23, 2014
Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Employ
10.9+ Form of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. 2014 Stock Plane- 8-K 000-50924 10.2 September 23, 2014
Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Exyges
10.10+ Form of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. 2014 Stock F8amck 8-K 000-50924 10.3 September 23, 2014
Option Agreemen
21* Subsidiaries of Beacon Roofing Supply, |
23.1* Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registé?ablic
Accounting Firm
31.1* CEO certification pursuant to Section 302 of theb&aes-

Oxley Act of 2002
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31.2* CFO certification pursuant to Section 302 of theb@aes-
Oxley Act of 2002

32.1* CEO certification pursuant to Section 906 of theb@aes-
Oxley Act of 2002

32.2* CFO certification pursuant to Section 906 of theb&aes-
Oxley Act of 2002

101* 101.INS XBRL Instanc
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Sche
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculati
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labe
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presenta
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definitic

+ Management contract or compensatory plan/arrange
* Filed herewitr

We will furnish any of our shareowners a copy of ahthe above Exhibits not included herein upamhitten request of such
shareowner and the payment to Beacon Roofing Supmpyof the reasonable expenses incurred in$hing such copy or copies.
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EXHIBIT 21
REGISTRANT’S SUBSIDIARIES
The following table sets forth, at November 25,20he Registrant’s significant operating subsidmand other associated

companies and their respective incorporation jictszhs. The Registrant owns 100% of the votingusiéies of each of the subsidiaries listed
below. There are no subsidiaries not listed intéiide, which would, in the aggregate, be considsiguificant.

State of
Active Subsidiaries Incorporation
Beacon Sales Acquisition, In Delaware
Beacon Canada, In Delaware

Beacon Roofing Supply Canada Comp. Nova Scotie




EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 333-193%83,172142, 333-128379,
333-119747 and 333-150773) of Beacon Roofing Syppty of our reports dated November 25, 2014 weipect to the consolidated
financial statements of Beacon Roofing Supply, ard the effectiveness of internal control oveaficial reporting of Beacon Roofing
Supply, Inc., included in the Annual Report (For@iK) for the year ended September 30, 2014.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLF

McLean, Virginia
November 25, 201




EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Paul M. Isabella, certify that
1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or amgtate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to tl
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angtfie periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaming, or caused such internal control over ftiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atauce with generally accepted accounting princijy

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the te@i’s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrast’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: November 25, 2014

/sl PAUL M. ISABELLA

Paul M. Isabell
President and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Joseph M. Nowicki, certify that:
1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or amgtate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to tl
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angtfie periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaming, or caused such internal control over ftiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atauce with generally accepted accounting princijy

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the te@i’s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrast’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: November 25, 2014
/s/ JOSEPH M. NOWICKI

Joseph M. Nowick
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Beacon RogfSupply, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K fowetyear ended September

30, 2014, as filed with the Securities and Exchabgemission on the date hereof (the “Report”),dulPM. Isabella, the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 ICS8 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations
of the Company

/s/ PAUL M. ISABELLA
Paul M. Isabell:
President and Chief Executive Offic

November 25, 201

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906, or other document authenticategnowledging, or otherwise
adopting the signature that appears in typed foithimvthe electronic version of this written staemrequired by Section 906, has been

provided to Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. and willre&ained by Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. and furedto the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.

This certification accompanies the Report purstaustection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 strall not, except to the

extent required by the Sarbar@sley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Compamyplurposes of Section 18 of the Securities Excha
of 1934, as amended.




EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Beacon RogfSupply, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K fowetyear ended September
30, 2014, as filed with the Securities and Excha@gmmission on the date hereof (the “Report”)pseph M. Nowicki, the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 IC S8 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations
of the Company

/s/ JOSEPH M. NOWICKI
Joseph M. Nowick
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

November 25, 201

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906, or other document authenticategnowledging, or otherwise
adopting the signature that appears in typed foithimvthe electronic version of this written stagmrequired by Section 906, has been

provided to Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. and willre&ained by Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. and furedto the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.

This certification accompanies the Report purstaustection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 strall not, except to the

extent required by the Sarbar@sley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Compamyplurposes of Section 18 of the Securities Excha
of 1934, as amended.




